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Vested Interest:  Whether you wear a vest in one of 

our stores, shop our aisles, work in our support centers, drive our trucks, 

help us as a supplier, or own shares in our company, we all have a vested  

interest in Wal-Mart’s ongoing success. This success will come from our  

continued allegiance to Sam Walton’s lifelong belief that our people 

make the difference.
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Sam Walton,
Founder of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
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Impressive numbers can describe our business, but individual lives account for our success. 

We look at every new location as an opportunity to improve the standard of living for the 

community we will serve. Consider Baldwin Hills in South Los Angeles. When we arrived, 

thousands of people applied for over 300 jobs. More than 300,000 customers visited the 

store the week we opened. More retailers have followed us, bringing even more jobs. 

The community’s economic vitality is returning. Simply put, what is happening in 

Baldwin Hills is everything that our business is about. 

We Serve More Than 
138 Million Customers 
Worldwide Each Week.

Vested Interest:
Improving The 
Quality Of Life
In Baldwin Hills, 
California.



Vested Interest:
Understanding A 
World Of Opportunity 
Still Exists.

International Sales Were 
Over $56 Billion Last Year.

Over 1,500 stores. Over 18% annual growth. And we’re just getting started. There’s 

hundreds of billions of dollars in opportunity to pursue and many new markets to explore. 

Here’s the greatest part of the story: we look different in every market – the United Kingdom, 

Germany, Brazil, Argentina, Puerto Rico, Mexico, China, South Korea and Canada. We also 

hold a minority interest in Seiyu, a Japanese retailer. Our growth is about what it’s always 

been about – understanding what the customer wants in each of these markets. If this 

sounds familiar, it’s because we’ve found that our three basic beliefs – respecting the 

individual, servicing our customers and striving for excellence – travel amazingly well. 
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Vested Interest:
Helping Keep The 
American Dream 
Alive And Well In 
Sleepy Hollow.

SAM’S CLUB® Is In Business 
For The More Than 23 Million 
Small Businesses In The U.S.*

SAM’S CLUB is committed to fueling one of our economy’s most powerful engines –

small businesses. This means stocking the merchandise small businesses need at every 

day low prices and providing services tailored to their unique needs. Take Jessica and 

Francisco Mejías, who successfully operate Los Andes Bakery, a Chilean bakery in Sleepy 

Hollow, NY and North Bergen, NJ. An integral part of their success has been having a 

convenient source for merchandise at excellent prices. They’ve found this at SAM’S CLUB, 

where they’ve been Members for more than a decade. 

*United States Small Business Administration 2003 Statistic



Vested Interest:
Fostering An Environ-
ment For Personal 
Empowerment And 
Opportunity In Stores 
Like This One In 
Lilburn, GA.

We Credit Our Success To 
Over 1.6 Million Associates 
Worldwide.

Ask a member of our store management team where they started, and they are likely to 

point toward a cash register, a store aisle or a stock room. The fact is, 76 percent of our 

store management started in hourly positions. Thanks to our practice of internal promo-

tion, thousands of associates were promoted to management positions last year alone. 

We need talent to fuel our growth. Next year, we project we will create more than 120,000 

jobs worldwide, and there’s a very good chance that those who slip into a vest will be 

with us for a lifetime. 
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STORE MANAGER, TINA WADLEIGH (IN FOREGROUND),  
WITH ASSOCIATES ON HER TEAM



Vested Interest:
Listening To What 
The Teacher Says. 

We Depend On 
Over 68,000 Suppliers.

Whether you are a Fortune 500 company or a schoolteacher with a great idea – we’re 

always looking for partners who can bring great merchandise to our customers. In 1997, 

Victoria Knight-McDowell sold her fi rst package of Airborne®, an herbal supplement 

she developed to help ward off the cold and fl u among her students. It worked so well 

that she brought it to us. We decided to take a chance on it. This year, Victoria Knight-

McDowell and Wal-Mart sold nearly a million bottles of Airborne® and we were able to 

meet the demands of customers who wanted this product at a great Wal-Mart price.
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Thanks to over 75,000 associates in Logistics and in our Information Systems Division, 

Wal-Mart has “the fi repower” behind our retailing strategy that strives to have what the customer 

wants, when the customer wants it. With the Data Warehouse storage capacity of over 570 

terabytes – larger than all of the fi xed pages on the Internet** – we have a remarkable level of 

real-time visibility into our merchandise planning. So much so that when Hurricane Ivan was 

heading toward the Florida panhandle, we knew that there would be a rise in demand for  

Kellogg’s® Strawberry Pop-Tart® toaster pastries. Thanks to our associates in the distribution 

centers and our drivers on the road, merchandise arrived quickly.
*Item/store combinations tracked worldwide
**“How Much Information” – 2003

Vested Interest:
Delivering More 
Kellogg’s® Pop-Tart®* 
Toaster Pastries 
To Pensacola.

*© 2005 Kellogg NA Co.

Our Data Center Tracks 
Over 680 Million SKU’s Weekly.*



This is the approach Carol Olney brings to her job as a special needs teacher in Mt. Pleasant, 

SC and one that earned her recognition as our national Teacher of the Year. In 2004, we gave 

back in excess of $4 million to the schools of thousands of teachers who were judged to have 

a profound impact on the lives of their students. This program is just one of many that 

support education, literacy and healthcare programs in our communities. Indeed, our stores 

and associates direct a majority of the cash contributions that we make annually toward 

their own communities. For the average store, this translates into more than $40,000 in 

local charitable giving.

Vested Interest:
Supporting Carol 
Olney’s Belief 
That “Nothing Is 
Impossible.”

Wal-Mart Is America’s Largest 
Corporate Charitable Contributor.



Lee Scott
President and Chief Executive Officer

To Our Shareholders, 
Associates And Customers:

Our fiscal year ending January 31, 2005 was 
another record year for Wal-Mart. We topped 
$10 billion in net income for the first time in our 
history and added almost $29 billion in sales. 

As we look back on last year and reflect on the overall performance  

of our company, we hope one thing is crystal clear to you as a share-

holder: Wal-Mart’s health and future growth prospects have never 

been stronger.  

Record Financial Results
We ended our 2005 fiscal year with record sales and earnings. We 

opened a record number of stores. We promoted a record number  

of associates. We made significant achievements in our diversity  

and compliance programs. We made management changes on the 

operations side of our business that will serve us well, both today  

and in the future. Perhaps most important, Wal-Mart remains  

committed to a culture built from a foundation of integrity,  

respect for one another, continual improvement and service  

to the customer. We have found that this culture translates  

well anywhere in the world.

Global revenues for the fiscal year 2005 exceeded  

$285 billion, and net income surpassed $10 billion. We  

grew earnings faster than sales by doing the basics well –  

better in-stock, less markdowns and an improved mer- 

chandise mix. As a result, we generated higher profits  

for our shareholders without passing along higher  

prices to our customers. 
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Fiscal Years Ended January 31,
(In Millions Except Per Share Data) 2005  2004 2003 2002 2001

Net Sales $285,222 $256,329 $229,616 $204,011 $180,787

Cost of Sales $219,793 $198,747 $178,299 $159,097 $140,720

Net Income $   10,267 $     9,054 $     7,955 $     6,592 $     6,235

Diluted Earnings Per Share $         2.41 $        2.07 $       1.79 $       1.47 $       1.39

Long-term Debt $   20,087 $  17,102 $  16,597 $  15,676 $  12,489

Return on Assets(1) 9.3% 9.2% 9.2% 8.4% 8.6%

Return on Shareholders’ Equity(2) 22.1% 21.3% 20.9% 19.4% 21.3%

(1) Income from continuing operations before minority interest divided by average assets.
(2) Income from continuing operations divided by average shareholders’ equity.

Financial Highlights

Wal-Mart also returned to our shareholders more 

than $6.7 billion, in the form of more than $2.2 billion in 

dividends and more than $4.5 billion in share repurchase.

Outstanding Growth Prospects
In the coming year, we plan to open as many as 530 new  

stores. This includes adding up to 250 more Supercenters, 

45 new Discount Stores, 40 new SAM’S 

CLUBS® and 30 new Neighborhood 

Markets in the United States. Interna- 

tionally, our plan is to open as many 

as 165 new locations. Combined, these 

new stores will represent more than 

an eight percent square footage growth 

or, put another way, the addition of 

approximately 55 million square feet of new retail space, 

and this does not include the square footage of our  

distribution centers.

Our ability to add successfully this many stores to 

our business, year after year, is one of Wal-Mart’s most 

significant achievements and core strengths. Yet, even 

internally, we sometimes take this accomplishment 

for granted since we do it with such apparent ease. In 

fact, this is not as easy as it looks, but we hope it is a 

unique and special capability that you take pride in as 

a Wal-Mart shareholder. 

As part of this growth, we are making a concerted 

effort to work more collaboratively with our communities. 

This includes being more flexible with city leaders on our 

individual store designs, and making sure we are a good 

local citizen as we open new stores. Last year in the U.S., 

for example, Wal-Mart donated more than $170 million to 

local community organizations and causes, making us the 

largest cash contributor to charity in corpo-

rate America. 

However, if we can put all the big 

numbers aside for a moment, one of the 

most exciting aspects about Wal-Mart 

today is how much room we have yet to 

grow, both in the U.S. and around the 

world, and how much career opportunity 

we are creating for our associates as we grow.

For example, even with the size and success we have 

achieved, today Wal-Mart has earned less than three  

percent of the global retail market share. In other words, 

about 97 percent of the retail business around the world 

is not being done at Wal-Mart today. 

In the U.S. alone, we estimate there is room for almost  

4,000 more Supercenters. In some areas, we locate new 

stores close to existing stores, a fact some have questioned.  

We take this approach in growing markets for several  

reasons. First, as the market continues to grow, we are  

“ As we look back on last year 
and reflect on the overall perfor-
mance of our company, we hope 
one thing is crystal clear to you as 
a shareholder: Wal-Mart’s health 
and future growth prospects have 
never been stronger.”
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the ones in position to serve customers instead of our 

competitors. Second, over time total sales from the two 

stores can almost double the sales of the original store. 

And third, we can relieve congestion in the first store and  

create a better shopping experience for our customers. 

We will continue to drive improvement throughout 

our stores with a sharp focus on the following:

•  Maintaining our price leadership position;

•  Merchandising more aggressively;

•  Improving our in-stock position;

•  Developing and motivating our people while working 

to ensure that the Wal-Mart work experience is a good 

one for all our associates.

Associates Will Take Us To The 
Next Level
Of course, as Sam Walton taught us,  

at the end of the day people are the key 

to Wal-Mart’s success. 

David Smith, the People Director 

at ASDA, our U.K. division, puts it well: 

“We don’t just look at people as they are, 

but as what they can become.” We are proud of the fact  

that 76 percent of our store management started their  

careers in hourly positions.

There is no question in my mind that Wal-Mart 

is the most exciting company in the world in terms of 

creating career opportunities for people who want to 

learn and excel.

Moreover, there is no culture stronger than the 

Wal-Mart culture. This past year, our company has con-

sistently demonstrated its high standards of integrity and 

its unwavering commitment to accountability when these 

standards are not met. As I talk to associates about how 

we have dealt with individuals who have failed to meet 

these standards, it is encouraging to hear them talk with 

pride about the inherent strength of the Wal-Mart culture 

and the fact that integrity applies to everyone at Wal-Mart, 

no matter what job or position with the company.

Looking Ahead
As 2005 unfolds, we will continue to grow. With the  

support of our suppliers and the focus of our associates, 

U.S. comp store sales should increase. SAM’S CLUB® is 

building momentum as it delivers upon its promise to 

be “in business for small business.” And, 13 years after 

we opened our first store in Mexico, the growth of our 

international business is accelerating. Today, this is a 

$56 billion dollar business that has doubled in size in 

just five years. 

For me personally, you can expect to see me con-

tinue to tell the Wal-Mart story more aggressively. Our 

senior management team will join me in this important 

effort in the coming year.

We have such a good story to tell at  

Wal-Mart, from the career opportunities  

we’re creating, the support we provide to  

individual communities, and the improved 

standard of living we’re providing to our 

customers through our low prices and 

wide assortment.

More than ever, I feel privileged to 

represent this company, thanks in large part to our 

associates. Because of you, we do have a great story to 

tell and the individual acts of kindness you show every 

day have such a positive impact on our shareholders, 

our customers and communities.

My thanks to all of you, including our shareholders, 

who help make Wal-Mart such a special company.

Lee Scott

President and Chief Executive Officer

“ Today, Wal-Mart has earned 
less than three percent of the 
global retail market share. 
In other words, about 97 per-
cent of the retail business 
around the world is not done 
at Wal-Mart today.”

 WAL-MART  2005 ANNUAL REPORT   13



“ My mother and dad always maintained  
that each store knew what was most  
important in its own community, and their  
philosophy endures today.”

Thoughts 
& Comments
 From Rob Walton, 
 Chairman of the Board of Directors

Following are representative questions from Wal-Mart 
shareholders which provide an opportunity for Rob 
Walton, Chairman of the Board of Wal-Mart Stores, 
Inc., to share his perspective in a few key areas.

What are your thoughts on why Wal-Mart  
ran full-page ads in more than 100 
newspapers this past January?
 

It was time to set the record straight. For some time, 
Wal-Mart has been the target of criticism on a number 
of subjects. We know that we are not perfect, but we 
also know when someone is not telling the truth about 
our company or distorting the facts to suit their own 
purposes. For example, consider our associate benefits.  
An independent benefits firm actually ranked our 
benefits among the best in retail. Personally, I’m 
proud of our company and everything it stands for. 
I want to see it represented accurately. Our adver-
saries are entitled to their opinions, but not their 
own set of facts. You will continue to see us take a 
more aggressive approach in this area. I also would 
encourage people to visit our new, non-commercial 
Web site – http://www.walmartfacts.com – and read 
the facts about Wal-Mart.

What can you tell us about today’s 
Board of Directors?

First, I am pleased with the quality and depth of our 
current Board. We have an excellent mixture of experi-
ence and individual perspective which I assure you 
leads to some spirited discussions. We continue to add 
talent to our Board. For example, we just added Doug 
Daft, former CEO of The Coca-Cola Company, to our 
Board and he will add expertise in the international 
area as well as bring perspective as the former CEO  
of one of our major suppliers. In addition, two of our 
key Board committees – Audit and Compensation –  
are headed respectively by two very capable people, 
Roland Hernandez and Jose Villarreal. Our newest 
nominee, Linda Wolf, brings perspective and strategic 
communications experience from overseeing Leo Burnett, 
one of the world’s leading advertising agencies.

14    WAL-MART  2005 ANNUAL REPORT



 WAL-MART  2005 ANNUAL REPORT   15

What is the thinking behind the  
company’s charitable donations?

My mother and dad (Helen and Sam Walton) always 
maintained that each store knew what was most important 
in its own community, and their philosophy endures today. 
Communities support us, and we want to support them 
through both donations and personal involvement. This is 
why 90 percent of our contributions are directed at the local 
level. We also address needs on a national level. For exam-
ple, we are major supporters on a national scale of children’s 
hospitals, literacy, teachers, our troops, the United Way, and 
other key causes and groups. One of our biggest challenges 
and priorities in this area is to make sure that our cus-
tomers and community leaders know what a good citizen 
Wal-Mart is. I have no doubt that Wal-Mart’s level of giving 
and the way it is directed reflects my parents’ priorities.

How do you feel about the current  
management team?

For those of us who literally grew up in the store – and 
there are lots of associates who can join me in making that 
statement – it is gratifying to see dedicated men and women 
leading our company who not only have exceptional busi- 
ness skills, but who also understand what makes Wal-Mart, 
Wal-Mart. They know that always putting the customer first; 
always understanding how important associates are; and 
always remaining open to change are the reasons for our 
success. They embrace these strengths and build on them. 
 It’s also exciting to see Wal-Mart really come into its 
own as a global company and to see global talent develop 
and be shared. It’s great to have people like Eduardo 
Castro-Wright, who is Executive Vice President and Chief 
Operating Officer for our Wal-Mart Stores Division. Formerly, 
he was our President and Chief Executive Officer in Mexico 
and now he is running our largest business unit. We also 
have “home grown” talents like Linda Dillman, Chief 
Information Officer for our Information Systems Division, 
who worked her way up in the company by learning and 
excelling in various technology roles. She has been recog-
nized as one of the Top 50 “Most Powerful Women” by 
Fortune, is a respected leader and is driving our Radio 
Frequency Identification (RFID) initiatives. There are many 
stories of associates advancing within our ranks and it says 
a lot about the outstanding career opportunities available 
today at Wal-Mart. 

Could you please comment on Wal-Mart’s 
priorities as the company continues to grow? 

Seeing our people succeed is first and foremost. When they 
succeed, our company succeeds. And, our people succeed 
when they embrace my dad’s vision – to improve the lives 

of everyday people by making everyday things more 
affordable. As long as we’re working for the customer, 
we’ll grow and prosper. One way we can do a better job 
for our customers is to make sure our associate profile 
represents our customer base, so diversity is an impor-
tant priority. I am pleased to report that every one of 
our officers met their mentoring and diversity good 
faith effort goals this year and only one officer missed 
meeting their placement goals. That’s excellent progress 
and it reflects how our company operates with standards 
and concern for people, which allows us to have an 
impact that goes beyond bottom-line results. 

The stock price has been relatively flat 
for the past five years. Why doesn’t the 
stock react to the company’s consistent 
reports of record sales and earnings?

Over the long term, our stock price will track our  
earnings performance. However, over the short term, 
numerous other factors, like stock market trends, eco-
nomic factors, interest rates and employment levels, all 
may affect the stock price. It is frustrating that over the 
last five years, our sales have gone up almost 83 percent 
and our earnings have grown almost 100 percent, but 
our stock price hasn’t moved. We have had consistent 
sales and earnings growth, and if we continue to focus 
on serving our customers and taking care of our asso-
ciates, the stock should reach its appropriate valuation.

What is the Walton family’s perspective 
on Wal-Mart today?

First, we know and appreciate that Dad’s emphasis  
on integrity remains a foundation of the Wal-Mart 
culture. We have all seen how important this is today. 
We also are pleased with the ongoing development of 
the Wal-Mart leadership team. The growth of Wal-Mart 
just since Dad passed away in 1992 has been most 
impressive. At the same time, we recognize that our 
size and success have brought unusual challenges, 
particularly from an external standpoint. However,  
as we step back and look at Wal-Mart through a wide 
lens, the Walton family has never felt better about the 
company and our future. 

If you would like to send a message to Rob Walton or a member of  

the board, please use the e-mail addresses listed below: 

Rob Walton: srobwalton@wal-mart.com

An individual board member: (director’s full name)@wal-mart.com

The full board: directors@wal-mart.com

Only independent directors: independentdirectors@wal-mart.com



Operational Review:

Michael T. Duke
President and Chief Executive Officer, 
Wal-Mart Stores U.S.

“ Our store and our community 
leaders have become great friends. 
Together we helped the city and the 
people who live here by advancing 
the work of a number of local civic 
and charitable activities.”

Mickey Anderson 
Store Manager, LaQuinta, CA

In March 2004, store #1805 in LaQuinta moved locations 

and was converted to the first Supercenter in California. 

During the transition, the store worked very closely with 

Mayor Don Adolph’s office. Mickey Anderson, the store 

manager, and over 700 associates utilized this opportunity 

to have a more positive influence in LaQuinta. For the past 

year, the store has raised and contributed thousands for the 

community and taken part in everything from bake sales to 

car washes to help the city’s non-profit arts organization, 

as well as its Parks and Recreation programs. In addition, 

the store took an active role in “Roundtable West,” a project 

spearheaded by the mayor’s wife, which contributes time 

and money towards children’s literacy efforts. And when 

LaQuinta threw its annual “Birthday Bash,” store #1805 

was an enthusiastic sponsor and an active participant in 

the celebration. 

A LWAYS  LOW  PRI CES.
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LaQuinta Mayor Don Adolph with  
co-manager Emilio Gonzalez and 
store manager Mickey Anderson



T H I N G S  Y O U  C A N  C O U N T  O N  F R O M  W A L - M A R T  S TO R E S

Total Number of Discount Stores 1,353

Total Number of Supercenters 1,713

Total Number of Neighborhood Markets 85

Total Selling Space (SQUARE FEET IN MILLIONS) 459.2

Total Sales $191.8 billion

4. World-Class Logistics
Moving merchandise from here to there faster, more accurately and with incredible effi ciency is 
synonymous with Wal-Mart. Our distribution centers are state-of-the-art facilities that regularly 
increase their capacity and productivity. Annually, our distribution centers will process over 
fi ve billion cases through our entire network to Stores and Clubs, often with one of our 7,800 
plus truck drivers. Constant attention to advancements in technology, engineering and systems 
keeps our logistic operations on the cutting edge. 

3. Customer-Oriented Shopping Plus The Latest Merchandise
Day-to-day needs and hundreds of fun and fashion items are all in one convenient, customer-
friendly place. From fl at-screen televisions (available in a majority of our stores) to fruit-fl avored 
waters, we stock our stores with what the customer wants. We partner with thousands of U.S. 
suppliers and work with hundreds of local suppliers to make certain the 100 million customers 
who visit our stores in the U.S. each week can easily fi nd great values on up-to-the-minute items. 

2. Career Advancement
Wal-Mart created tens of thousands of new jobs in the U.S. last year and many of those 
newcomers moved up in the ranks. A large number of associates advanced to careers in our 
stores, while others went on to Wal-Mart careers in real estate, merchandising, logistics, 
information technology, marketing, advertising and other areas.

1. Signifi cant Store Growth
In fi scal 2005, we added over 36 million square feet of retail space and grew revenue by more 
than 10%. We added 242 new Supercenters, 36 new Discount Stores and 21 new Neighborhood 
Markets in fi scal 2005. These numbers include relocations, expansions and conversions of 
existing stores. 

5. Patriotism
Currently, approximately 3,200 Wal-Mart associates are on active duty, and when asked, many 
more Wal-Mart associates told us they had served in our country’s military. To help associates 
on active duty, Wal-Mart continues their benefi ts, provides assistance to their families and 
makes up the difference between their military pay and their regular Wal-Mart wages.

WHAT YOU 
OWN IN THE 

UNITED STATES

As of January 31, 2005



Operational Review:

B. Kevin Turner
President and Chief Executive Officer,
SAM’S CLUB®

“ The aftermath of the hurricane here was  
indescribable, but you can describe the reaction 
of the people here with one word, ‘generous.’  
Everyone pitched in to do what they could.”

Ken Lord 
Club Manager, Port Charlotte, FL

Ken Lord, with key associates, Lisa Varney and 
Elizabeth Couch along with the Fire Department of 
Port Charlotte, FL

When Hurricane Charley smashed onto the  

West coast of Florida on August 13, 2004,  

the SAM’S CLUB in Port Charlotte became 

a beacon of help. Many in the community 

needed emergency supplies and SAM’S CLUB –  

one of the first businesses to get back up and 

running – worked with fire and rescue teams 

to get flashlights, plywood and hundreds of 

other items to area victims. Small businesses 

got help, too. Associates, many of whom were 

given time off to salvage their own homes and 

assist in the community’s recovery, worked  

tirelessly to provide restaurants, childcare  

facilities, clinics, offices and more with the 

items they needed to remain operational and 

limit their downtime losses. 
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T H I N G S  Y O U  C A N  C O U N T  O N  F R O M  S A M ’ S  C L U B®

Total Number of Warehouse Clubs 551

Total Member Count (IN MILLIONS) 47+

Total Selling Space (SQUARE FEET IN MILLIONS) 70.7

Total Sales  $37.1 billion

Number of Clubs with Gas Stations 325

4. Expanded Item Selection At samsclub.com
This year we added thousands of new offi ce supply items online at samsclub.com along 
with thousands of other new business items and personal needs items. Our expanding 
assortment of quality items at low warehouse club prices can be shipped right to the 
member’s home or business. 

3. We Offer A Treasure Hunt
In addition to great business items that we strive to always have in-stock, we also offer “in-and-
out” premium quality items at incredible values. Our Members visit our Clubs to hunt for these 
on-trend classic items that add excitement to their shopping experience. These items don’t last 
long, so our Members must visit often and buy them when they see them so they don’t miss out!

2. We Are In Business For Small Business 
Throughout the year we invite business owners in targeted industries to our Clubs to showcase 
new items and services that will help them save time and money.  The key business segments 
we focus on are restaurants, convenience stores, offi ces, contractors, child care and learning 
centers, religious organizations, beauty and barber shops, vending and motels. Our business is 
about saving these businesses money!

1. Price Leadership
We don’t run off-price sales, offer coupons, rebates or other gimmicks, so we can provide our 
members low warehouse club prices – every day. According to independent price comparison 
studies, we consistently offer small businesses the lowest prices in the industry!

5. Citizenship
We continually support local community causes with funds raised by our Club associates in the 
communities that they serve. Our associates give generously of their time and efforts. As evident 
by the support our associates provided during the past hurricane-ravaged year in Florida, we 
serve small businesses by also serving the communities that they (our Members) serve.

WHAT YOU 
OWN IN THE 

UNITED STATES

As of January 31, 2005



Operational Review:
A LWAYS  LOW  PRI CES. INTERNATIONAL

John B. Menzer
President and Chief Executive Officer,
Wal-Mart International

“ For me, everyone at ASDA is family. We  
all try to help each other any way we can.  
And we try to make our store a place 
where people really like to work.”

                                                        Billy Main
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Billy Main and David Beale
ASDA, West Bridgford, England

Billy was named ASDA’s Shining Star of the year 

for spreading sunshine all over the store and, 

more particularly, for becoming something of a 

guardian angel to one of his store associates, 

David Beale. On his own time, Billy helped 

David, who at age 56 was unable to read, enroll 

in school. He dutifully made sure David got to 

school every day so he could learn how to read 

and write – skills that have opened new doors 

for David in both his work and personal life. 

Outside of his job at ASDA, in an effort to clean 

up his community, Billy has been known to 

jump off the bus to collect abandoned 

ASDA shopping carts and bring them 

back to the store. We salute asso-

ciates like Billy who are truly 

raising the bar for all of us. 



T H I N G S  Y O U  C A N  C O U N T  O N  F R O M  W A L - M A R T  I N T E R N AT I O N A L

WHAT 
YOU OWN 
AROUND 

THE WORLD

Total Number of Units  1,587

Total Number of Units in Asia 59

Total Number of Units in Europe 373

Total Number of Units in The Americas 1,155*

Total Selling Space (SQUARE FEET IN MILLIONS) 133.4

Total Sales  $56.3 billion

*Excludes Vips Franchises

3. Supplier Development
Through joint business planning we provide 
suppliers with the tools and data to better 
forecast their sales demand and effi ciently 
plan production and delivery schedules. We 
share real-time store and product data with 
our suppliers, including sales of individual 
products by store. Our suppliers aid us in 
better understanding new markets and 
staying attuned to our customers’ needs.

2. New Units
Over 200 units were added including new 
space in Mexico, China, Canada, the United 
Kingdom and Brazil. Important to the 
expansion in Brazil was the acquisition of 
Bompreço that added 118 hypermarkets, 
supermarkets and mini markets to the 
country’s existing 25 units and gave 
Wal-Mart International its fi rst stores 
in the Northeast part of the country.

5. Good Jobs
Surveys continue to recognize us as an 
admired employer. In the U.K., “Fortune” 
magazine named us “the best company to 
work for.” In Canada, we were voted “best 
retailer to work for.” Plus, in Argentina 
and Mexico, we won special awards for 
our diversity programs. Our goal is to 
continue to provide clean, safe, exciting 
workplaces and the opportunity for career 
training and advancement. 

1. Doing Our Best
For the fi rst time ever, “Retailing Today” 
magazine awarded its “Retailer of the Year” 
recognition to an individual unit of a com-
pany, Wal-Mart International. It’s an honor 
voted on by our retailing peers throughout 
the industry. In addition, in Brazil, Mexico 
and China we were picked as one of those 
countries’ “Most Admired” companies.

6. Innovative Service
Customers love our one-stop shopping 
environment and the variety of formats we 
offer. In terms of service, we offer a wide 
range of retail services like ‘Drogaria’ 
(Pharmacy) in Brazil and Life, Home, 
Travel, Auto and Pet insurance at our 
ASDA stores in the U.K. In China, we 
opened our fi rst Vision Center in the city 
of Wuhan, making us the fi rst mass retailer 
to offer our own vision services. 

4. Community Support
We give back to our communities in 
hundreds of ways, including our “Tickled 
Pink” campaign in the U.K. that involves 
customers and associates and raised over 
$4 million in 2004 for breast cancer treat-
ment and research. In China, we are paying 
annual educational costs for 1,000 children 
who, because of fi nancial diffi culties, were 
unable to attend school.
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11-Year Financial Summary
W A L - M A R T

(Dollar amounts in millions except per share data)

Fiscal Years Ending January 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995

Net Sales $285,222 $256,329 $229,616 $204,011 $180,787 $156,249 $130,522 $112,005 $99,627 $89,051 $78,338
Net sales increase 11.3% 11.6% 12.6% 12.8% 15.7% 19.7% 16.5% 12.4% 11.9% 13.7% 23.6%
Comparative store sales increase in the United States (1) 3% 4% 5% 6% 5% 8% 9% 6% 5% 4% 7%
Cost of sales $219,793 $198,747 $178,299 $159,097 $140,720 $121,825 $102,490 $  88,163 $78,897 $70,485 $61,929
Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses 51,105 44,909 39,983 35,147 30,822 26,025 21,778 18,831 16,437 14,547 12,434 
Interest expense, net 986 832 927 1,183 1,196 840 598 716 807 863 669
Effective tax rate 34.7% 36.1% 35.2% 36.2% 36.5% 36.8% 37.4% 37.0% 36.8% 36.8% 37.2%
Income from continuing operations $  10,267 $    8,861 $    7,818 $    6,448 $    6,087 $    5,394 $    4,240 $    3,424 $  2,978 $  2,689 $  2,643
Net income 10,267 9,054 7,955 6,592 6,235 5,324 4,397 3,504 3,042 2,737 2,681

Per share of common stock:
 Income from continuing operations, diluted $      2.41 $      2.03 $      1.76 $      1.44 $      1.36 $      1.21 $      0.95 $      0.76 $    0.65 $    0.58 $    0.58
 Net income, diluted 2.41 2.07 1.79 1.47 1.39 1.19 0.98 0.77 0.66 0.59 0.59
 Dividends 0.52 0.36 0.30 0.28 0.24 0.20 0.16 0.14 0.11 0.10 0.09

Financial Position
Current assets of continuing operations $  38,491 $  34,421 $  29,543 $  26,615 $  25,344 $  23,478 $  20,064 $  18,589 $17,385 $16,779 $14,827
Inventories 29,447 26,612 24,401 22,053 20,987 19,296 16,361 16,005 15,556 15,667 13,726
Property, equipment and capital lease assets, net 68,567 59,023 51,374 45,248 40,461 35,533 25,600 23,237 19,935 18,554 15,561
Total assets of continuing operations 120,223 105,405 92,900 81,549 76,231 68,983 48,513 44,221 38,571 36,621 31,959
Current liabilities of continuing operations 42,888 37,840 32,225 26,795 28,366 25,525 16,155 13,930 10,432 10,944 9,449
Long-term debt 20,087 17,102 16,597 15,676 12,489 13,653 6,887 7,169 7,685 8,483 7,844
Long-term obligations under capital leases 3,582 2,997 3,000 3,044 3,152 3,000 2,697 2,480 2,304 2,089 1,834
Shareholders’ equity 49,396 43,623 39,461 35,192 31,407 25,878 21,141 18,519 17,151 14,757 12,726

Financial Ratios
Current ratio 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.2 1.3 1.7 1.5 1.6
Return on assets (2) 9.3% 9.2% 9.2% 8.4% 8.6% 9.8% 9.5% 8.5% 8.0% 7.9% 9.2%
Return on shareholders’ equity (3) 22.1% 21.3% 20.9% 19.4% 21.3% 22.9% 21.4% 19.2% 18.7% 19.6% 22.5%

Other Year-End Data
Discount Stores in the United States 1,353 1,478 1,568 1,647 1,736 1,801 1,869 1,921 1,960 1,995 1,985
Supercenters in the United States 1,713 1,471 1,258 1,066 888 721 564 441 344 239 147
SAM’S CLUBs in the United States  551 538 525 500 475 463 451 443 436 433 426
Neighborhood Markets in the United States 85 64 49 31 19 7 4 - - - -
Units outside the United States 1,587 1,355 1,272 1,154 1,054 991 703 589 314 276 226
Shareholders of record 331,000 335,000 330,000 324,000 317,000 307,000 261,000 246,000 257,000 244,000 259,000

(1)  Comparative store sales are considered to be sales at stores that were open as of February 1 of the prior fiscal year and have not been expanded or  
relocated since that date.

(2) Income from continuing operations before minority interest divided by average assets.

(3) Income from continuing operations divided by average shareholders’ equity.

Financial information for all years has been restated to reflect the 
sale of McLane Company, Inc. (“McLane”) that occurred in fiscal 
2004. McLane is presented as a discontinued operation. All years 
have been restated for the adoption of the expense recognition 
provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 
123, “Accounting and Disclosure of Stock-Based Compensation.” 
Fiscal 1995 was not affected by the adoption.

In fiscal 2003, the company adopted Financial Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 142, “Goodwill and Other 
Intangible Assets.” In years prior to adoption, the company 
recorded amortization expense related to goodwill.
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(Dollar amounts in millions except per share data)

Fiscal Years Ending January 31, 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995

Net Sales $285,222 $256,329 $229,616 $204,011 $180,787 $156,249 $130,522 $112,005 $99,627 $89,051 $78,338
Net sales increase 11.3% 11.6% 12.6% 12.8% 15.7% 19.7% 16.5% 12.4% 11.9% 13.7% 23.6%
Comparative store sales increase in the United States (1) 3% 4% 5% 6% 5% 8% 9% 6% 5% 4% 7%
Cost of sales $219,793 $198,747 $178,299 $159,097 $140,720 $121,825 $102,490 $  88,163 $78,897 $70,485 $61,929
Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses 51,105 44,909 39,983 35,147 30,822 26,025 21,778 18,831 16,437 14,547 12,434 
Interest expense, net 986 832 927 1,183 1,196 840 598 716 807 863 669
Effective tax rate 34.7% 36.1% 35.2% 36.2% 36.5% 36.8% 37.4% 37.0% 36.8% 36.8% 37.2%
Income from continuing operations $  10,267 $    8,861 $    7,818 $    6,448 $    6,087 $    5,394 $    4,240 $    3,424 $  2,978 $  2,689 $  2,643
Net income 10,267 9,054 7,955 6,592 6,235 5,324 4,397 3,504 3,042 2,737 2,681

Per share of common stock:
 Income from continuing operations, diluted $      2.41 $      2.03 $      1.76 $      1.44 $      1.36 $      1.21 $      0.95 $      0.76 $    0.65 $    0.58 $    0.58
 Net income, diluted 2.41 2.07 1.79 1.47 1.39 1.19 0.98 0.77 0.66 0.59 0.59
 Dividends 0.52 0.36 0.30 0.28 0.24 0.20 0.16 0.14 0.11 0.10 0.09

Financial Position
Current assets of continuing operations $  38,491 $  34,421 $  29,543 $  26,615 $  25,344 $  23,478 $  20,064 $  18,589 $17,385 $16,779 $14,827
Inventories 29,447 26,612 24,401 22,053 20,987 19,296 16,361 16,005 15,556 15,667 13,726
Property, equipment and capital lease assets, net 68,567 59,023 51,374 45,248 40,461 35,533 25,600 23,237 19,935 18,554 15,561
Total assets of continuing operations 120,223 105,405 92,900 81,549 76,231 68,983 48,513 44,221 38,571 36,621 31,959
Current liabilities of continuing operations 42,888 37,840 32,225 26,795 28,366 25,525 16,155 13,930 10,432 10,944 9,449
Long-term debt 20,087 17,102 16,597 15,676 12,489 13,653 6,887 7,169 7,685 8,483 7,844
Long-term obligations under capital leases 3,582 2,997 3,000 3,044 3,152 3,000 2,697 2,480 2,304 2,089 1,834
Shareholders’ equity 49,396 43,623 39,461 35,192 31,407 25,878 21,141 18,519 17,151 14,757 12,726

Financial Ratios
Current ratio 0.9 0.9 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9 1.2 1.3 1.7 1.5 1.6
Return on assets (2) 9.3% 9.2% 9.2% 8.4% 8.6% 9.8% 9.5% 8.5% 8.0% 7.9% 9.2%
Return on shareholders’ equity (3) 22.1% 21.3% 20.9% 19.4% 21.3% 22.9% 21.4% 19.2% 18.7% 19.6% 22.5%

Other Year-End Data
Discount Stores in the United States 1,353 1,478 1,568 1,647 1,736 1,801 1,869 1,921 1,960 1,995 1,985
Supercenters in the United States 1,713 1,471 1,258 1,066 888 721 564 441 344 239 147
SAM’S CLUBs in the United States  551 538 525 500 475 463 451 443 436 433 426
Neighborhood Markets in the United States 85 64 49 31 19 7 4 - - - -
Units outside the United States 1,587 1,355 1,272 1,154 1,054 991 703 589 314 276 226
Shareholders of record 331,000 335,000 330,000 324,000 317,000 307,000 261,000 246,000 257,000 244,000 259,000

(1)  Comparative store sales are considered to be sales at stores that were open as of February 1 of the prior fiscal year and have not been expanded or  
relocated since that date.

(2) Income from continuing operations before minority interest divided by average assets.

(3) Income from continuing operations divided by average shareholders’ equity.

The acquisition of the ASDA Group PLC and the company’s 
related debt issuance had a significant impact on the fiscal 2000 
amounts in this summary.

Years prior to 1998 have not been restated for the effects of the 
change in accounting method for SAM’S CLUB membership  
revenue recognition as the effects of this change would not  

have a material impact on this summary.  The cumulative effect for 
this accounting change recorded in fiscal 2000 amounted to  
$198 million net of tax.

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior periods to  
conform to current presentations.
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Overview
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (“Wal-Mart” or the “company”) is a global 
retailer committed to growing by improving the standard of living 
for our customers throughout the world. We earn the trust of our 
customers every day by providing a broad assortment of quality 
merchandise and services at everyday low prices (“EDLP”) while 
fostering a culture that rewards and embraces mutual respect, 
integrity and diversity. EDLP is our pricing philosophy under which 
we price items at a low price every day so that our customers trust 
that our prices will not change erratically under frequent promo-
tional activity. SAM’S CLUB is in business for small businesses. 
Our focus for SAM’S CLUB is to provide exceptional value on brand-
name merchandise at “Members Only” prices for both business and 
personal use. Internationally, we operate with similar philosophies.

We intend for this discussion to provide the reader with informa-
tion that will assist in understanding our financial statements, the 
changes in certain key items in those financial statements from 
year to year, and the primary factors that accounted for those 
changes, as well as how certain accounting principles affect our 
financial statements. The discussion also provides information 
about the financial results of the various segments of our business 
to provide a better understanding of how those segments and their 
results affect the financial condition and results of operations of 
the company as a whole. This discussion should be read in con-
junction with our financial statements and accompanying notes  
as of January 31, 2005, and the year then ended.

Throughout this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results 
of Operations and Financial Condition, we discuss segment oper-
ating income and comparative store sales. Segment operating 
income refers to income from continuing operations before net 
interest expense, income taxes and minority interest. Segment 
operating income does not include unallocated corporate over-
head. Comparative store sales is a measure which indicates the 
performance of our existing stores by measuring the growth in 
sales for such stores for a particular period over the correspond-
ing period in the prior year. We consider comparative store sales to 
be sales at stores that were open as of February 1st of the prior fis-
cal year and have not been expanded or relocated since that date. 
Stores that were expanded or relocated during that period are not 
included in the calculation. Comparative store sales is also referred 
to as “same-store” sales by others within the retail industry. The 
method of calculating comparative store sales varies across the retail 
industry. As a result, our calculation of comparative store sales is 
not necessarily comparable to similarly titled measures reported  
by other companies. 

On May 2, 2003, we announced that we had entered into an 
agreement to sell McLane Company, Inc. (“McLane”), one of our 
wholly-owned subsidiaries, for $1.5 billion. On May 23, 2003, the 
transaction was completed. As a result of this sale, we have clas-
sified McLane as a discontinued operation in the financial state-
ments and these discussions and comparisons of the current and 
prior fiscal years. McLane’s external sales prior to the divestiture 
were $4.3 billion in fiscal 2004 and $14.9 billion for fiscal 2003. 
McLane continues to be a supplier to the company.

Operations
Our operations are comprised of three business segments:  
Wal-Mart Stores, SAM’S CLUB and International.

Our Wal-Mart Stores segment is the largest segment of our busi-
ness, accounting for approximately 67.3% of our fiscal 2005 sales. 
This segment consists of three different retail formats, all of which 
are located in the United States, including:

•  Supercenters, which average approximately 187,000 square feet 
in size and offer a wide assortment of general merchandise and  
a full-line supermarket;

•  Discount Stores, which average approximately 100,000 square 
feet in size and offer a wide assortment of general merchandise 
and a limited assortment of food products; and

•  Neighborhood Markets, which average approximately 43,000 
square feet in size and offer a full-line supermarket and a limited 
assortment of general merchandise.

Our SAM’S CLUB segment consists of membership warehouse 
clubs in the United States and accounts for approximately 13.0% 
of our fiscal 2005 sales. Our SAM’S CLUBs in the United States 
average approximately 128,000 square feet in size.

Our International operations are located in eight countries and  
Puerto Rico. Internationally, we generated approximately 19.7%  
of our fiscal 2005 sales. Outside the United States, we operate 
several different formats of retail stores and restaurants, including 
Supercenters, Discount Stores and SAM’S CLUBs. Additionally,  
we own an unconsolidated 37% minority interest in The Seiyu, 
Ltd. (“Seiyu”), a retailer in Japan.

The Retail Industry
We operate in the highly competitive retail industry in both 
the United States and abroad. We face strong sales competi-
tion from other general merchandise, food and specialty retailers. 
Additionally, we compete with a number of companies for prime 
retail site locations, as well as in attracting and retaining quality 
employees (“associates”). We, along with other retail companies, 
are influenced by a number of factors including, but not limited 
to: cost of goods, consumer debt levels, economic conditions,  
customer preferences, employment, labor costs, inflation, currency 
exchange fluctuations, fuel prices, weather patterns, insurance 
costs and accident costs.

Key Items in Fiscal 2005
Significant financial items during fiscal 2005 include:

•  Net sales increased 11.3% from fiscal 2004 to $285.2 billion in 
fiscal 2005, and income from continuing operations increased 
15.9% to $10.3 billion. Foreign currency exchange rates favor-
ably impacted sales by $3.2 billion in fiscal 2005.

•  Net operating cash provided by operating activities was $15.0 bil-
lion for fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2005 we repurchased $4.5 bil-
lion of our common stock under our share repurchase program and 
paid dividends of $2.2 billion. Additionally during fiscal 2005,  
we issued $5.8 billion in long-term debt securities and repaid 
$2.1 billion of long-term debt.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Results of Operations and Financial Condition
W A L - M A R T



 WAL-MART  2005 ANNUAL REPORT   25

•  Total assets increased 14.1%, to $120.2 billion at January 31, 2005,  
when compared to January 31, 2004. During fiscal 2005, we made  
$12.9 billion of capital expenditures which was an increase of 
25.1% over capital expenditures of $10.3 billion in fiscal 2004.

•  Our International segment had an operating income increase of 
26.1% and a sales increase of 18.3% compared to fiscal 2004. 
The largest contributors to the strong international performance 
were our operations in Mexico and the United Kingdom. Fiscal 
2005 operating income for the International segment includes 
a favorable impact of $150 million from changes in foreign cur-
rency exchange rates.

•  SAM’S CLUB’s continued focus on our business members 
helped drive a 13.7% increase in operating income on a 7.5% 
increase in sales when comparing fiscal 2005 with fiscal 2004.

•  When compared to fiscal 2004, our Wal-Mart Stores segment 
experienced a 9.7% increase in operating profit and a 10.1% 
increase in sales in fiscal 2005.

Company Performance Measures
Management uses a number of metrics to assess its performance. 
The following are the more frequently discussed metrics:

•  Comparative store sales is a measure which indicates whether 
our existing stores continue to gain market share by measuring 
the growth in sales for such stores for a particular period over the 
corresponding period in the prior year. Our Wal-Mart Stores seg-
ment’s comparative store sales were 2.9% for fiscal 2005 versus  
 

3.9% for fiscal 2004. The lower comparative store sales growth in 
fiscal 2005 is generally reflective of the softer economy in fiscal 
2005, including the impact of higher fuel and utility costs on our 
customers. Our SAM’S CLUB segment’s comparative club sales 
were 5.8% in fiscal 2005 compared to 5.3% in fiscal 2004. The 
more favorable growth in fiscal 2005 resulted from our continued 
focus on the business member.

•  Operating income growth greater than net sales growth has long 
been a measure of success for us. For fiscal 2005 our operat-
ing income increased by 13.8% when compared to fiscal 2004, 
while net sales increased by 11.3% over the same period.  
Both International and SAM’S CLUB segments met this target; 
however, the Wal-Mart Stores segment fell slightly short.

•  Inventory growth at a rate less than half of sales growth is a key 
measure of our efficiency. Total inventories at January 31, 2005, 
were up 10.7% over levels at January 31, 2004, and sales were 
up 11.3% when comparing fiscal 2005 with fiscal 2004. This 
ratio was affected in fiscal 2005 by sales which were weaker than 
anticipated, as well as by increased levels of imported merchan-
dise, which carries a longer lead time.

•   With an asset base as large as ours, we are focused on continu-
ing to make certain our assets are productive. It is important 
for us to sustain our return on assets at its current level. Return 
on assets is defined as income from continuing operations 
before minority interest divided by average total assets. Return 
on assets for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 was 9.3%, 9.2% and 
9.2%, respectively.

Our total net sales increased by 11.3% and 11.6% in fiscal 2005 
and 2004 when compared to the previous fiscal year. Those 
increases resulted from our expansion programs and compara-
tive store sales increases in the United States. Comparative store 
sales increased 3.3% in fiscal 2005 and 4.1% in fiscal 2004. As we 
continue to add new stores in the United States, we do so with 
an understanding that additional stores may take sales away from 
existing units. We estimate that comparative store sales in fiscal 
2005, 2004 and 2003 were negatively impacted by the opening 
of new stores by approximately 1%. We expect that this effect of 
opening new stores on comparable store sales will continue during 
fiscal 2006 at a similar rate. 

During fiscal 2005 and 2004, foreign currency exchange rates had 
a $3.2 billion and $2.0 billion favorable impact, respectively, 
on the International segment’s net sales causing an increase in 
the International segment’s net sales as a percentage of total net 
sales relative to the Wal-Mart Stores and SAM’S CLUB segments. 
Additionally, the decrease in the SAM’S CLUB segment’s net 
sales as a percent of total company sales in fiscal 2005 and 2004 
when compared to fiscal 2003 resulted from the more rapid devel-
opment of new stores in the International and Wal-Mart Stores 
segments than the SAM’S CLUB segment.

Results of Operations
The company and each of its operating segments had net sales (in millions), as follows:

Fiscal year ended January 31,  2005   2004  2003

     Percent  Percent  Percent  Percent  Percent
    Net sales of total increase Net sales of total increase Net sales of total

Wal-Mart Stores $191,826 67.3% 10.1% $174,220 68.0% 10.9% $157,120 68.4%
SAM’S CLUB 37,119 13.0% 7.5% 34,537 13.5% 8.9% 31,702 13.8%
International 56,277 19.7% 18.3% 47,572 18.5% 16.6% 40,794 17.8%

Total net sales $285,222 100.0% 11.3% $256,329 100.0% 11.6% $229,616 100.0%
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Our total gross profit as a percentage of net sales (our “gross mar-
gin”) was 22.9%, 22.5% and 22.3% in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 
2003, respectively. Our Wal-Mart Stores and International segment 
sales yield higher gross margins than our SAM’S CLUB segment. 
Accordingly, the greater increases in net sales for the Wal-Mart 
Stores and International segments in fiscal 2005 and 2004 had  
a favorable impact on the company’s total gross margin.

Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses (“operat-
ing expenses”) as a percentage of net sales were 17.9%, 17.5% and 
17.4% for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The increase 
in operating expenses as a percentage of total net sales was pri-
marily due to a faster rate of growth in operating expenses in our 
Wal-Mart Stores and International segments, which have higher 
operating expenses as a percentage of segment net sales than our 
SAM’S CLUB segment. Operating expenses in fiscal 2005 were 
impacted by the Wal-Mart Stores and SAM’S CLUB segments’ 
implementation of a new job classification and pay structure for 
hourly field associates in the United States. The job classification 
and pay structure, which was implemented in the second quarter 
of fiscal 2005, was designed to help maintain internal equity and 
external competitiveness.

Operating expenses in fiscal 2004 were impacted by the adoption 
of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 02-16, “Accounting by a 
Reseller for Cash Consideration Received from a Vendor” (“EITF 
02-16”). The adoption of EITF 02-16 resulted in an after-tax  
reduction in fiscal 2004 net income of approximately $140 million.

Interest, net, as a percentage of net sales increased slightly in fis-
cal 2005 when compared with fiscal 2004 due to higher borrow-
ing levels and higher interest rates during fiscal 2005. For fiscal 

2004, interest, net, as a percentage of net sales decreased 0.1% 
when compared to fiscal 2003, primarily from lower average inter-
est rates on our outstanding debt and the positive impact of our 
fixed-to-variable interest rate-swap program.

Our effective income tax rates for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 
were 34.7%, 36.1% and 35.2%, respectively. The reduction in 
our effective tax rate from fiscal 2004 to fiscal 2005 is due to 
the passage of the Working Families Tax-Relief Act of 2004 in 
October 2004, which retroactively extended the work oppor-
tunity tax credit for fiscal 2005. Additionally, our fiscal 2004 
effective tax rate was impacted by an increase to our valuation 
allowance. As a result of tax legislation in Germany in January 
2004, we re-evaluated the recoverability of our deferred tax asset 
in Germany. This re-evaluation resulted in a $150 million charge 
to increase our valuation allowance in fiscal 2004. This increase 
in our valuation allowance caused our effective tax rate to rise to 
36.1% in fiscal 2004.

In fiscal 2005, we earned income from continuing operations of 
$10.3 billion, a 15.9% increase over fiscal 2004. Net income in 
fiscal 2005 increased 13.4% from fiscal 2004 largely as a result 
of the increase in income from continuing operations described 
above, net of the $193 million previously provided in fiscal 2004 
by McLane, which was disposed in the first half of fiscal 2004 and 
accounted for as a discontinued operation in that period. During 
fiscal 2004, we earned income from continuing operations of 
$8.9 billion, a 13.3% increase over fiscal 2003. Our net income 
increased 13.8% over the same period largely as a result of the 
increase in income from continuing operations described above 
and the $151 million after-tax gain on the sale of McLane recog-
nized in fiscal 2004.

The segment net sales increases in fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 
from the prior fiscal years resulted from comparative store sales 
increases of 2.9% in fiscal 2005 and 3.9% in fiscal 2004, in addi-
tion to our expansion program in the Wal-Mart Stores segment. 
We believe that comparative store sales in 2005 increased at a 
slower rate than 2004 due to a softer economy and because our 
customers have been impacted by higher fuel and utility costs. 
Our expansion programs consist of opening new units, convert-
ing Discount Stores to Supercenters, relocations that result in 
more square footage, as well as expansions of existing stores. 
Segment expansion during fiscal 2005 included the opening of 36 
Discount Stores, 21 Neighborhood Markets and 242 Supercenters 
(including the conversion and/or relocation of 159 existing 
Discount Stores into Supercenters). Two Discount Stores closed 
in fiscal 2005. During fiscal 2005, our total expansion program 

added approximately 36 million of store square footage, an 8.6% 
increase. Segment expansion during fiscal 2004 included the 
opening of 41 Discount Stores, 15 Neighborhood Markets and 
213 Supercenters (including the conversion and/or relocation of 
130 existing Discount Stores into Supercenters). One Discount 
Store closed in fiscal 2004. During fiscal 2004, our total expan-
sion program added approximately 34 million, or 8.8%, of store 
square footage.

While our fiscal 2005 segment operating income as a percentage 
of segment net sales was unchanged from fiscal 2004, segment 
gross margin and operating expenses as a percent of sales were 
each up 0.4% for the year. Our gross margin improvement can be 
primarily attributed to our global sourcing effort and reductions in 
markdowns and shrinkage as a percentage of segment net sales for 

Wal-Mart Stores Segment
  Segment Net Sales Increase Segment Operating Segment Operating Income Operating Income as a 
 Fiscal Year from Prior Fiscal Year Income (in millions)  Increase from Prior Fiscal Year Percentage of Segment Sales

 2005 10.1%  $14,163  9.7%  7.4%
 2004 10.9%   12,916  9.1%  7.4%
 2003 12.9%   11,840  16.2%  7.5%
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fiscal 2005 when compared to fiscal 2004. The segment’s operat-
ing expenses in fiscal 2005 as a percentage of segment net sales 
were higher than fiscal 2004 primarily due to expense pressures 
from associate wages and accident costs. Wages primarily increased 
due to our new job classification and pay structure, which was 
implemented in the second quarter of fiscal 2005.

The fiscal 2004 decrease in segment operating income as a per-
centage of segment net sales compared with fiscal 2003 resulted 

from a 0.4% increase in segment operating expenses, which was 
partially offset by a 0.3% increase in gross margin for the segment 
when compared with fiscal 2003. The gross margin improve-
ment was driven primarily by a favorable shift in the mix of prod-
ucts sold and our global sourcing efforts, despite increased apparel 
markdowns in the second half of the year. Segment operating 
expenses in fiscal 2004 as a percentage of segment net sales were 
higher than fiscal 2003 primarily due to increased insurance and 
advertising costs.

Growth in net sales for the SAM’S CLUB segment in fiscal 2005 
and fiscal 2004 resulted from comparative club sales increases of 
5.8% in fiscal 2005 and 5.3% in fiscal 2004, along with our expan-
sion program. Comparative club sales in 2005 increased at a higher 
rate than in 2004 primarily as the result of continued focus on small 
business members, along with improved sales in fresh and specialty 
categories, including fuel. Segment expansion consisted of the open-
ing of 13 new clubs in both fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004. Our total 
expansion program added approximately 3 million of additional club 
square footage, or 3.7%, in fiscal 2005 and approximately 2 million, 
or 3.6%, of additional club square footage in fiscal 2004.

Segment operating income as a percentage of segment net sales 
increased slightly in fiscal 2005 when compared to fiscal 2004. 
The increase is due to an improvement in gross margin, partially 

offset by an increase in operating expenses as a percentage of seg-
ment net sales and the impact of the adoption of EITF 02-16 in 
fiscal 2004. The improvement in gross margin is primarily a result 
of strong sales in higher margin categories. Operating expenses 
as a percentage of segment net sales increased due primarily to 
higher wage costs resulting from our new job classification and pay 
structure, which was implemented in the second quarter of fiscal 
2005. The adoption of EITF 02-16 resulted in a decrease to the 
segment’s operating income in fiscal 2004 of $44 million.

Segment operating income as a percentage of segment net sales 
increased slightly in fiscal 2004 when compared to fiscal 2003, 
due to a reduction in operating expenses resulting from working 
more closely with the Wal-Mart Stores segment.

Our International segment is comprised of wholly owned opera-
tions in Argentina, Canada, Germany, South Korea, Puerto Rico 
and the United Kingdom, the operations of joint ventures in 
China and operations of majority-owned subsidiaries in Brazil  
and Mexico.

The fiscal 2005 increase in the International segment’s net sales pri-
marily resulted from improved operating results, our international 
expansion program and the impact of foreign currency exchange 
rate changes. In fiscal 2005, the International segment opened 232 
units, net of relocations and closings, which added 18 million, or 
15.6%, of additional unit square footage. This includes the acquisi-
tion of Bompreço S.A. Supermercados do Nordeste (“Bompreço”) 
in Brazil, which added 118 stores and 7.5 million square feet 

in February 2004. Additionally, the impact of changes in for-
eign currency exchange rates favorably affected the translation of 
International segment sales into U.S. dollars by an aggregate of 
$3.2 billion in fiscal 2005.

The fiscal 2004 increase in International net sales primarily 
resulted from both improved operating results and our interna-
tional expansion program. In fiscal 2004, the International seg-
ment opened 83 units, net of relocations and closings, which 
added 9 million, or 8.5%, of additional unit square footage. 
Additionally, the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange 
rates favorably affected the translation of International segment 
sales into U.S. dollars by an aggregate of approximately $2.0 bil-
lion in fiscal 2004. 

International Segment
  Segment Net Sales Increase Segment Operating Segment Operating Income Operating Income as a 
 Fiscal Year from Prior Fiscal Year Income (in millions)  Increase from Prior Fiscal Year Percentage of Segment Sales

 2005 18.3%  $ 2,988  26.1%  5.3%
 2004 16.6%   2,370  18.6%  5.0%
 2003 15.0%   1,998  57.2%  4.9%

SAM’S CLUB Segment
  Segment Net Sales Increase Segment Operating Segment Operating Income Operating Income as a 
 Fiscal Year from Prior Fiscal Year Income (in millions)  Increase from Prior Fiscal Year Percentage of Segment Sales

 2005 7.5%  $1,280  13.7%  3.4%
 2004 8.9%   1,126  10.1%  3.3%
 2003 7.8%   1,023   0.0%  3.2%
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Fiscal 2005 sales at our United Kingdom subsidiary, ASDA, were 
46.2% of the International segment net sales. Sales for ASDA 
included in our consolidated income statement during fiscal 2005, 
2004, and 2003 were $26.0 billion, $21.7 billion, and $18.1 bil-
lion, respectively.

The fiscal 2005 increase in segment operating income as a percent-
age of segment sales compared with fiscal 2004 resulted primar-
ily from a 0.3% improvement in gross margin. The improvement 
in gross margin was due to a favorable shift in the mix of products 
sold toward general merchandise categories which carry a higher 
margin. Fiscal 2005 operating income includes a favorable impact 
of $150 million from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

The fiscal 2004 increase in segment operating income as a per-
centage of segment net sales compared with fiscal 2003 resulted 
from a 0.4% improvement in gross margin offset by increases in 
operating expenses primarily due to the adoption of EITF 02-16. 
The improvement in gross margin was due to an overall increase 
as a percentage of the segment’s net sales in general merchandise 
sales which carry a higher margin. The International segment’s 
operating income in fiscal 2004 included a favorable impact of 
$81 million from changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Our financial results from our foreign operations could be affected 
by factors such as changes in foreign currency exchange rates, 
weak economic conditions, changes in tax law and government 
regulations in the foreign markets in which we operate. We mini-
mize exposure to the risk of devaluation of foreign currencies by 
operating in local currencies. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Overview
Cash flows provided by operating activities of continuing opera-
tions provide us with a significant source of liquidity. Our cash 
flows from operating activities of continuing operations were 
$15.0 billion in fiscal 2005, compared with $15.9 billion in fiscal 
2004. The decrease in cash flows provided by operating activities 
of continuing operations is primarily attributable to differences in 
the timing of payroll, income and other taxes, supplier payments 
and the timing of the collection of receivables in fiscal 2005 com-
pared with fiscal 2004.

Operating cash flows provided by continuing operations increased 
during fiscal 2004 compared with fiscal 2003 primarily due to 
improved operations and inventory management, accounts pay-
able growing at a faster rate than inventories and the timing of  
payroll and the collection of receivables.

In fiscal 2005, we paid dividends of $2.2 billion, made $12.9 bil-
lion in capital expenditures, paid $4.5 billion to repurchase shares 
of our common stock, received $5.8 billion from the issuance of 
long-term debt and repaid $2.1 billion of long-term debt.

Working Capital
Current liabilities exceeded current assets at January 31, 2005, by 
$4.4 billion, an increase of $978 million from January 31, 2004. 
Our ratio of current assets to current liabilities was 0.9 to 1 at 
January 31, 2005 and 2004. At January 31, 2005, we had total 
assets of $120.2 billion compared with total assets of $105.4 bil-
lion at January 31, 2004.

Company Share Repurchase Program
In September 2004, our Board of Directors approved a new  
$10.0 billion share repurchase program, separate from and replac-
ing the previous $7.0 billion program authorized in January 2004. 
Through January 31, 2005, we have repurchased $337 million 
of shares under the $10.0 billion share repurchase program. At 
January 31, 2005, approximately $9.7 billion of additional shares 
may be repurchased under the current authorization. There is no 
expiration date governing the period over which we can make our  
share repurchases. Under our share repurchase programs, repurchased 
shares are constructively retired and returned to unissued status.

Total fiscal 2005 share repurchases under our share repurchase 
programs were $4.5 billion. During fiscal 2004, we repurchased 
$5.0 billion of shares.

We consider several factors in determining when to make share 
repurchases, including among other things, our current cash 
needs, our cost of borrowing, and the market price of the stock. 
The increased authorization approved in September 2004, in part, 
contemplates possible repurchases of our shares that may become 
available for purchase as a result of the Standard & Poor’s (“S&P”) 
Index float adjustment implemented in March and September of 
2005. Under the float adjustment, share counts used to determine 
the S&P indices will reflect only those shares that are available to 
investors, not all outstanding shares. The float adjustment will 
exclude shares closely held by control groups. As a result our  
relative weight in the S&P indices will decline as the S&P indices 
are adjusted in March and September of 2005. We expect that 
such adjustments in the S&P indices will cause investment funds 
that base their portfolio allocations on S&P indices to sell a portion 
of the shares of the company they hold in order to rebalance their 
funds based on the new S&P index weightings.

Common Stock Dividends
We paid dividends totaling approximately $1.6 billion or $0.36 per 
share in fiscal 2004. In March 2004, our Board of Directors autho-
rized a 44% increase in our annual dividend to $0.52 per share. 
As a result, we paid $2.2 billion in dividends in fiscal 2005. We 
have increased our dividend every year since the first dividend 
was declared in March 1974. 

On March 3, 2005, the company’s Board of Directors approved an 
increase in annual dividends to $0.60 per share. The annual dividend 
will be paid in four quarterly installments on April 4, 2005, June 6, 
2005, September 6, 2005, and January 3, 2006 to holders of record 
on March 18, May 20, August 19 and December 16, 2005, respectively.  
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Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments
The following table sets forth certain information concerning our obligations and commitments to make contractual future payments, such 
as debt and lease agreements, and contingent commitments:

 Payments due during fiscal years ending January 31,

(in millions)    Total 2006 2007-2008 2009-2010 Thereafter

Recorded Contractual Obligations  
 Long-term debt     $23,846  $3,759  $ 4,972  $ 5,811  $ 9,304
 Commercial paper     3,812  3,812   –   –   –
 Capital lease obligations     5,720   521   1,019   958  3,222

Unrecorded Contractual Obligations:  
 Non-cancelable operating leases     9,072   730   1,326  1,108  5,908
 Interest on long-term debt     10,701  1,107   1,912  1,653  6,029
 Undrawn lines of credit     4,696  1,946   –  2,750   –
 Trade letters of credit     2,613  2,613   –   –   –
 Standby letters of credit     2,026  2,002   24   –   –
 Purchase obligations     28,472  12,461  13,717  2,280   14

Total commercial commitments     $90,958  $28,951  $22,970  $14,560  $24,477

Purchase obligations include all legally binding contracts such as 
firm commitments for inventory purchases, utility purchases, as 
well as capital expenditures, software acquisition/license commit-
ments and legally binding service contracts. Purchase orders for  
the purchase of inventory and other services are not included in  
the table above. Purchase orders represent authorizations to  
purchase rather than binding agreements. For the purposes of this 
table, contractual obligations for purchase of goods or services 
are defined as agreements that are enforceable and legally binding 
and that specify all significant terms, including: fixed or minimum 
quantities to be purchased; fixed, minimum or variable price provi-
sions; and the approximate timing of the transaction. Our purchase 
orders are based on our current inventory needs and are fulfilled 
by our suppliers within short time periods. We also enter into con-
tracts for outsourced services; however, the obligations under these 
contracts are not significant and the contracts generally contain 
clauses allowing for cancellation without significant penalty. 

The expected timing for payment of the obligations discussed 
above is estimated based on current information. Timing of pay-
ments and actual amounts paid may be different depending on the 
timing of receipt of goods or services or changes to agreed-upon 
amounts for some obligations. 

In addition to the amounts discussed and presented above, the 
company has made certain guarantees as discussed below for 
which the timing of payment, if any, is unknown.

In connection with the expansion of our distribution network in 
Canada, we have guaranteed specific obligations of a third-party 
logistics provider. In the unlikely event this provider fails to perform 
its financial obligations regarding certain Wal-Mart-related projects, 
we would be obligated to pay an amount of up to $118 million. 
These agreements cover periods of up to 10 years.

In connection with certain debt financing, we could be liable 
for early termination payments if certain unlikely events were to 
occur. At January 31, 2005, the aggregate termination payment 
was $113 million. These arrangements expire in fiscal 2011 and 
fiscal 2019.

In connection with the development of our grocery distribution 
network in the United States, we have agreements with third par-
ties which would require us to purchase or assume the leases on 
certain unique equipment in the event the agreements are termi-
nated. These agreements, which can be terminated by either party 
at will, cover up to a five-year period and obligate the company to 
pay up to approximately $163 million upon termination of some 
or all of these agreements. 

There are no recourse provisions which would enable us to 
recover from third parties any amounts paid under the above 
guarantees. No liability for these guarantees has been recorded 
in our financial statements.

The company has entered into lease commitments for land and 
buildings for 46 future locations. These lease commitments with real 
estate developers provide for minimum rentals ranging from 5-30 
years, which, if consummated based on current cost estimates, will 
approximate $30 million annually over the lease terms.

Capital Resources
During fiscal 2005, we sold $5.8 billion of notes. The proceeds 
from the sale of these notes were used to repay commercial paper 
and for other general corporate purposes. 
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At January 31, 2005 and 2004, the ratio of our debt to our total 
capitalization was 39% and 38%, respectively. Our objective is 
to maintain a debt to total capitalization ratio averaging approxi-
mately 40%.

Management believes that cash flows from operations and proceeds 
from the sale of commercial paper will be sufficient to finance any 
seasonal buildups in merchandise inventories and meet other cash 
requirements. If our operating cash flows are not sufficient to pay 
dividends and to fund our capital expenditures, we anticipate fund-
ing any shortfall in these expenditures with a combination of com-
mercial paper and long-term debt. We plan to refinance existing 
long-term debt as it matures and may desire to obtain additional 
long-term financing for other corporate purposes. We anticipate no 
difficulty in obtaining long-term financing in view of our credit rat-
ing and favorable experiences in the debt market in the recent past. 
At January 31, 2005, S&P, Moody’s Investors Services, Inc. and 
Fitch Ratings rated our commercial paper A-1+, P-1 and F1+ and 
our long-term debt AA, Aa2 and AA, respectively. 

Future Expansion
Capital expenditures for fiscal 2006 are expected to be approxi-
mately $14 billion, including additions of capital leases. These 
fiscal 2006 expenditures will include the construction of 40 to 45 
new Discount Stores, 240 to 250 new Supercenters (with reloca-
tions or expansions accounting for approximately 160 of those 
Supercenters), 25 to 30 new Neighborhood Markets, 30 to 40 new 
SAM’S CLUBs and 155 to 165 new units in our International seg-
ment (with relocations or expansions accounting for approximately 
30 of these units). We plan to finance this expansion primarily out 
of cash flows from operations and with the issuance of commercial 
paper and long-term debt.

Market Risk
In addition to the risks inherent in our operations, we are exposed 
to certain market risks, including changes in interest rates and 
changes in foreign exchange rates. In prior years, we presented our 
market risk information in tabular format. We have changed the 
presentation of this information to disclose a sensitivity analysis, 
because we believe it provides a more meaningful representation of 
our market risks. 

The analysis presented for each of our market risk sensitive instru-
ments is based on a 10% change in interest or foreign currency 
exchange rates. These changes are hypothetical scenarios used to 
calibrate potential risk and do not represent our view of future  
market changes. As the hypothetical figures indicate, changes in 
fair value based on the assumed change in rates generally cannot be 
extrapolated because the relationship of the change in assumption 
to the change in fair value may not be linear. The effect of a variation 
in a particular assumption is calculated without changing any other 
assumption. In reality, changes in one factor may result in changes 
in another, which may magnify or counteract the sensitivities.

At January 31, 2005 and 2004, we had $23.8 billion and  
$20.0 billion, respectively, of long-term debt outstanding.  
Our weighted average effective interest rate on long-term debt, 

after considering the effect of interest rate swaps, was 4.08% and 
3.97% at January 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. A hypotheti-
cal 10% increase in interest rates in effect at January 31, 2005 
and 2004, would have increased annual interest expense on  
borrowings outstanding at those dates by $25 million and  
$10 million, respectively.

We enter into interest rate swaps to minimize the risks and costs 
associated with financing activities, as well as to maintain an appro-
priate mix of fixed- and floating-rate debt. Our preference is to 
maintain approximately 50% of our debt portfolio, including interest 
rate swaps, in floating-rate debt. The swap agreements are contracts 
to exchange fixed- or variable-rates for variable- or fixed-interest rate 
payments periodically over the life of the instruments. The aggre-
gate fair value of these swaps was a gain of approximately $471 mil-
lion and $681 million at January 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. A 
hypothetical increase (or decrease) of 10% in interest rates from the 
level in effect at January 31, 2005, would result in a (loss) or gain in 
value of the swaps of ($123 million) or $126 million, respectively. A 
hypothetical increase (or decrease) of 10% in interest rates from the 
level in effect at January 31, 2004, would result in a (loss) or gain in 
value of the swaps of ($75 million) or $81 million, respectively. 

We hold currency swaps to hedge the foreign currency exchange  
component of our net investments in the United Kingdom and  
Japan. In addition, we hold a cross-currency swap which hedges  
the foreign currency risk of debt denominated in currencies other 
than the local currency. The aggregate fair value of these swaps  
at January 31, 2005 and 2004, was a loss of $169 million and  
$71 million, respectively. A hypothetical 10% increase (or decrease) 
in the foreign currency exchange rates underlying these swaps from 
the market rate would result in a (loss) or gain in the value of the 
swaps of ($90 million) and $71 million at January 31, 2005, and 
($83 million) and $65 million at January 31, 2004. A hypothetical  
10% change in interest rates underlying these swaps from the  
market rates in effect at January 31, 2005 and 2004, would have  
an insignificant impact on the value of the swaps.

We have designated debt of approximately £2.0 billion and £1.0 bil-
lion as of January 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively, as a hedge of  
our net investment in the United Kingdom. At January 31, 2005,  
a hypothetical 10% increase (or decrease) in value of the U.S. Dollar 
relative to the British Pound would result in a gain (or loss) in the 
value of the debt of $380 million. At January 31, 2004, a hypotheti-
cal 10% increase (or decrease) in value of the U.S. Dollar relative to 
the British Pound would result in a gain (or loss) in the value of the 
debt of $183 million.

Summary of Critical Accounting Policies
Management strives to report the financial results of the company 
in a clear and understandable manner, even though in some cases 
accounting and disclosure rules are complex and require us to use 
technical terminology. In preparing our consolidated financial state-
ments, we follow accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States. These principles require us to make certain estimates 
and apply judgments that affect our financial position and results of 
operations as reflected in our financial statements. These judgments 
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and estimates are based on past events and expectations of future 
outcomes. Actual results may differ from our estimates.

Management continually reviews its accounting policies, how they 
are applied and how they are reported and disclosed in our finan-
cial statements. Following is a summary of our more significant 
accounting policies and how they are applied in preparation of the 
financial statements.

Inventories
We value our inventories at the lower of cost or market as determined 
primarily by the retail method of accounting, using the last-in, first-
out (“LIFO”) method for substantially all merchandise inventories in 
the United States, except SAM’S CLUB merchandise, which is based 
on average cost using the LIFO method. Inventories for international 
operations are primarily valued by the retail method of accounting 
and are stated using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method.

Under the retail method, inventory is stated at cost, which is 
determined by applying a cost-to-retail ratio to each merchandise 
grouping’s retail value. The cost-to-retail ratio is based on the fis-
cal-year purchase activity for each store location. The retail method 
requires Management to make certain judgments and estimates that 
may significantly impact the ending inventory valuation at cost as 
well as the amount of gross margin recognized. Judgments made 
include the recording of markdowns used to sell through inven-
tory and shrinkage. Markdowns designated for clearance activity 
are recorded at the time of the decision rather than at the point of 
sale, when Management determines the salability of inventory has 
diminished. Factors considered in the determination of markdowns 
include current and anticipated demand, customer preferences, age 
of merchandise, as well as seasonal and fashion trends. Changes in 
weather patterns and customer preferences related to fashion trends 
could cause material changes in the amount and timing of mark-
downs from year to year. 

When necessary, the company records a LIFO provision each quar-
ter for the estimated annual effect of inflation, and these estimates are 
adjusted to actual results determined at year-end. Our LIFO provi-
sion is calculated based on inventory levels, markup rates and inter-
nally generated retail price indices except for grocery items, for which 
we use a consumer price index. At January 31, 2005 and 2004, our 
inventories valued at LIFO approximate those inventories if they were 
valued at FIFO.

The company provides for estimated inventory losses (“shrinkage”) 
between physical inventory counts on the basis of a percentage 
of sales. The provision is adjusted annually to reflect the histori-
cal trend of the actual physical inventory count results. Historically, 
shrinkage has not been volatile.

Impairment of Assets
We evaluate long-lived assets other than goodwill for indicators of 
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
their carrying value may not be recoverable. Management’s judg-
ments regarding the existence of impairment indicators are based 
on market conditions and our operational performance, such as 
operating income and cash flows. The variability of these factors 
depends on a number of conditions, including uncertainty about 
future events, and thus our accounting estimates may change from 
period to period. These factors could cause Management to con-
clude that impairment indicators exist and require that impairment 
tests be performed, which could result in Management determining 
that the value of long-lived assets is impaired, resulting in a write-
down of the long-lived assets.

Goodwill is evaluated for impairment annually or whenever events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that the value of certain good-
will may be impaired. This evaluation requires Management to make 
judgments relating to future cash flows, growth rates, economic and 
market conditions. These evaluations are based on discounted cash 
flows that incorporate the impact of existing company businesses. 
Historically, the company has generated sufficient returns to recover 
the cost of goodwill and other intangible assets. Because of the nature 
of the factors used in these tests, if different conditions occur in 
future periods, future operating results could be materially impacted.

Income Taxes
The determination of our provision for income taxes requires sig-
nificant judgment, the use of estimates, and the interpretation and 
application of complex tax laws. Significant judgment is required in 
assessing the timing and amounts of deductible and taxable items. 
We establish reserves when, despite our belief that our tax return 
positions are fully supportable, we believe that certain positions may 
be successfully challenged. When facts and circumstances change, 
we adjust these reserves through our provision for income taxes.

Self-Insurance
We use a combination of insurance, self-insured retention and 
self-insurance for a number of risks including workers’ compensa-
tion, general liability, vehicle liability and the company’s portion of 
employee-related health care benefits. Liabilities associated with the 
risks that we retain are estimated in part by considering historical 
claims experience, including frequency, severity, demographic  
factors, and other assumptions. In calculating our liability, we analyze 
our historical trends, including loss development, and apply appropri-
ate loss-development factors to the incurred costs associated with the 
claims made against our self-insured program. The estimated accruals 
for these liabilities could be significantly affected if future occurrences 
or loss development differ from these assumptions. For example, 
for workers’ compensation and liability, a 1% increase or decrease 
to the assumptions for claims costs and loss development factors 
would increase or decrease our self-insurance accrual by $21 mil-
lion and $53 million, respectively. A 1% increase or decrease in 
employee-related health care costs would increase or decrease our 
self-insured employee health care expense by $16 million.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Results of Operations and Financial Condition
W A L - M A R T

32    WAL-MART  2005 ANNUAL REPORT

For a listing of our significant accounting policies, please see  
Note 1 to our consolidated financial statements that appear after  
this discussion.

New Accounting Pronouncement
On February 1, 2003, the company adopted the expense recognition  
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, 
“Accounting and Disclosure of Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 
123”). Under SFAS 123, compensation expense is recognized based 
on the fair value of stock options granted. Upon the adoption of 
SFAS 123, we retroactively restated the results of our operations for 
the accounting change. Following the provisions of SFAS 123, the 
consolidated statements of income for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 
include $122 million, $102 million and $84 million, respectively, 
of after-tax stock option expense, which is approximately $0.03 per 
share in fiscal year 2005 and $0.02 per share for fiscal years 2004 
and 2003. In December, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board issued a revision of SFAS 123 (“SFAS 123(R)”). We adopted 
the provisions of SFAS 123(R) upon its release. Prior to the adop-
tion of SFAS 123(R), we used the Black-Scholes-Merton formula 
to estimate the value of stock options granted to associates. We 
continue to use this acceptable option valuation model following 
our adoption of SFAS 123(R). SFAS 123(R) requires that the ben-
efits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost 
be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating 
cash flow as required under previously effective accounting princi-
ples generally accepted in the United States. The adoption of SFAS 
123(R) did not have a material impact on our results of operations, 
financial position or cash flows.

Forward-Looking Statements
This Annual Report contains statements that Wal-Mart believes are 
“forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private 
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, which statements are 
intended to enjoy the protection of the safe harbor for forward-
looking statements provided by that Act. These forward-looking 
statements include statements under the caption “Liquidity and 
Capital Resources” in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of 
Financial Condition and Results of Operations with respect to our 
capital expenditures, our ability to fund certain cash flow shortfalls 
by the sale of commercial paper and long-term debt securities, our 
ability to sell our long-term securities and our anticipated reasons 
for repurchasing shares of our common stock. These statements are 
identified by the use of the words “anticipate,” “contemplate,” 

“expect” and “plan,” and other, similar words or phrases. 
Similarly, descriptions of our objectives, strategies, plans, goals 
or targets are also forward-looking statements. These statements 
discuss, among other things, expected growth, future revenues, 
future cash flows, future capital expenditures, future perfor-
mance and the anticipation and expectations of Wal-Mart and its 
Management as to future occurrences and trends. These forward-
looking statements are subject to certain factors, in the United 
States and internationally, that could affect our financial perfor-
mance, business strategy, plans, goals and objectives. Those fac-
tors include the cost of goods, labor costs, the cost of fuel and 
electricity, the cost of healthcare, competitive pressures, inflation, 
accident-related costs, consumer buying patterns and debt levels, 
weather patterns, currency exchange fluctuations, trade restric-
tions, changes in tariff and freight rates, changes in tax law, the 
outcome of legal proceedings to which we are a party, unemploy-
ment levels, interest rate fluctuations, changes in employment 
legislation and other capital market, economic and geo-political 
conditions. Moreover, we typically earn a disproportionate part of 
our annual operating income in the fourth quarter as a result of 
the seasonal buying patterns. Those buying patterns are difficult to 
forecast with certainty. The foregoing list of factors that may affect 
our performance is not exclusive. Other factors and unanticipated 
events could adversely affect our business operations and financial 
performance. We discuss certain of these matters more fully, as 
well as certain risk factors that may affect our business operations, 
financial condition and results of operations, in other of our  
filings with the SEC, including our Annual Report on Form 10-K.  
We filed our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended 
January 31, 2005, with the SEC on or about March 31, 2005. 
Actual results may materially differ from anticipated results 
described or implied in these forward-looking statements as a 
result of changes in facts, assumptions not being realized or  
other circumstances. You are urged to consider all of these risks, 
uncertainties and other factors carefully in evaluating the forward-
looking statements. The forward-looking statements included in 
this Annual Report are made only as of the date of this report, 
and we undertake no obligation to update these forward-looking 
statements to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.
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(Amounts in millions except per share data)

Fiscal years ended January 31, 2005 2004 2003

Revenues:   
 Net sales $285,222  $256,329  $229,616 
 Other income, net 2,767  2,352  1,961 

    287,989  258,681  231,577 
Costs and expenses:
 Cost of sales 219,793  198,747  178,299 
 Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses 51,105  44,909  39,983 

Operating income 17,091  15,025  13,295 

Interest:
 Debt 934  729  799 
 Capital leases 253  267  260 
 Interest income (201) (164) (132)

 Interest, net 986  832  927 

Income from continuing operations before income  
 taxes and minority interest 16,105  14,193  12,368 

Provision for income taxes:   
 Current 5,326  4,941   3,883 
 Deferred 263  177  474 

    5,589  5,118  4,357 

Income from continuing operations before  
 minority interest  10,516  9,075  8,011 
Minority interest (249) (214) (193)

Income from continuing operations 10,267  8,861  7,818 
Income from discontinued operation, net of tax –  193  137 

Net income $  10,267  $    9,054  $    7,955 

Basic net income per common share:   
 Income from continuing operations $      2.41  $      2.03  $      1.77 
 Income from discontinued operation –  0.05  0.03 

 Basic net income per common share $      2.41  $      2.08  $      1.80 

Diluted net income per common share:   
 Income from continuing operations $      2.41  $      2.03  $      1.76 
 Income from discontinued operation –  0.04  0.03 

 Diluted net income per common share $      2.41  $      2.07  $      1.79 

Weighted-average number of common shares:
 Basic 4,259  4,363 4,430 
 Diluted 4,266  4,373 4,446 

Dividends per common share $      0.52  $      0.36  $      0.30 

See accompanying notes.

Consolidated Statements of Income
W A L - M A R T
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(Amounts in millions except per share data)

January 31,   2005 2004

Assets  
Current assets:
 Cash and cash equivalents  $    5,488 $    5,199
 Receivables  1,715 1,254
 Inventories  29,447 26,612
 Prepaid expenses and other  1,841 1,356

  Total current assets  38,491 34,421
Property and equipment, at cost:
 Land  14,472 12,699
 Buildings and improvements  46,582 40,192
 Fixtures and equipment  21,461 17,934
 Transportation equipment  1,530 1,269

 Property and equipment, at cost  84,045 72,094
 Less accumulated depreciation  18,637 15,684

  Property and equipment, net  65,408 56,410
Property under capital lease:
 Property under capital lease  4,997 4,286
 Less accumulated amortization  1,838 1,673

  Property under capital lease, net  3,159 2,613
 Goodwill  10,803 9,882
 Other assets and deferred charges  2,362 2,079

  Total assets  $120,223 $105,405

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
 Commercial paper  $    3,812 $    3,267
 Accounts payable  21,671 19,425
 Accrued liabilities  12,155 10,671
 Accrued income taxes  1,281 1,377
 Long-term debt due within one year  3,759 2,904
 Obligations under capital leases due within one year  210 196

  Total current liabilities  42,888 37,840

Long-term debt  20,087 17,102
Long-term obligations under capital leases  3,582 2,997
Deferred income taxes and other  2,947 2,359
Minority interest  1,323 1,484

Commitments and contingencies

Shareholders’ equity:
 Preferred stock ($0.10 par value; 100 shares authorized, none issued)             –           –
 Common stock ($0.10 par value; 11,000 shares authorized, 4,234  
  and 4,311 issued and outstanding in 2005 and 2004, respectively)  423 431
 Capital in excess of par value  2,425 2,135
 Other accumulated comprehensive income  2,694 851
 Retained earnings  43,854 40,206
  Total shareholders’ equity  49,396 43,623

  Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity  $120,223 $105,405

See accompanying notes.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
W A L - M A R T
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
W A L - M A R T

    Other  
   Capital in Accumulated 
 Number Common Excess of Comprehensive Retained 
(Amounts in millions except per share data) of Shares Stock Par Value Income Earnings Total

Balance – January 31, 2002 4,453  $ 445  $  1,838  $ (1,268) $  34,177  $  35,192 
Comprehensive income:
 Net income from continuing operations     7,818  7,818 
 Net income from discontinued operation     137   137
 Other accumulated comprehensive income:
  Foreign currency translation    1,113  1,113
  Net unrealized depreciation of derivatives    (148)  (148)
  Minimum pension liability    (206)  (206)

Total comprehensive income      8,714
 Cash dividends ($0.30 per share)     (1,328) (1,328)
 Purchase of company stock (63) (5) (150)  (3,228) (3,383)
 Stock options exercised and other 5   266    266 

Balance – January 31, 2003 4,395  440  1,954  (509) 37,576  39,461 
Comprehensive income:
 Net income from continuing operations     8,861  8,861 
 Net income from discontinued operation     193  193 
 Other accumulated comprehensive income:      
  Foreign currency translation    1,685   1,685
  Net unrealized depreciation of derivatives    (341)  (341)
  Minimum pension liability    16  16

Total comprehensive income      10,414 
 Cash dividends ($0.36 per share)     (1,569) (1,569)
 Purchase of company stock (92) (9) (182)  (4,855) (5,046)
 Stock options exercised and other 8   363    363

Balance – January 31, 2004 4,311  431  2,135  851  40,206   43,623 
Comprehensive income:      
 Net income from continuing  
  operations         10,267  10,267 
 Other accumulated comprehensive  
  income:            
  Foreign currency translation       2,130    2,130 
  Net unrealized depreciation  
   of derivatives       (194)   (194)
  Minimum pension liability       (93)  (93)

Total comprehensive income           12,110 
 Cash dividends ($0.52 per share)         (2,214) (2,214)
 Purchase of company stock (81) (8) (136)   (4,405) (4,549)
 Stock options exercised and other 4    426      426 

Balance – January 31, 2005 4,234  $423  $2,425  $2,694  $43,854  $49,396 

See accompanying notes.
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(Amounts in millions)

Fiscal years ended January 31, 2005 2004 2003

Cash flows from operating activities
 Income from continuing operations $  10,267  $   8,861  $   7,818 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
 provided by operating activities:   
  Depreciation and amortization 4,405  3,852  3,364 
  Deferred income taxes 263  177  474 
  Other operating activities 378  173  685 
  Changes in certain assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions:
   Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (304) 373  (159)
   Increase in inventories (2,635) (1,973) (2,219)
   Increase in accounts payable 1,694  2,587  1,748 
   Increase in accrued liabilities 976  1,896  1,212 

Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 15,044  15,946  12,923 
Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinued operation –  50  82 

Net cash provided by operating activities 15,044  15,996  13,005 

Cash flows from investing activities
 Payments for property and equipment (12,893) (10,308) (9,245)
 Investment in international operations (315) (38) (749)
 Proceeds from the disposal of fixed assets 953  481  311 
 Proceeds from the sale of McLane –  1,500  – 
 Other investing activities (96) 78  (73)

Net cash used in investing activities of continuing operations (12,351) (8,287) (9,756)
Net cash used in investing activities of discontinued operation –  (25) (83)

Net cash used in investing activities (12,351) (8,312) (9,839)

Cash flows from financing activities
 Increase in commercial paper 544  688 1,836 
 Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 5,832  4,099  2,044 
 Purchase of company stock (4,549) (5,046) (3,383)
 Dividends paid (2,214) (1,569) (1,328)
 Payment of long-term debt (2,131) (3,541) (1,261)
 Payment of capital lease obligations (204) (305) (216)
 Other financing activities 113  111  (62)

Net cash used in financing activities (2,609) (5,563) (2,370)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 205  320  (199)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 289  2,441  597 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (1) 5,199  2,758  2,161 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $   5,488  $   5,199  $   2,758 

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information   
 Income tax paid $   5,593  $   4,358  $   4,539 
 Interest paid    1,163     1,024     1,085 
 Capital lease obligations incurred       377        252        381 

(1) Includes cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operation of $22 million for 2003.

See accompanying notes.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
W A L - M A R T
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1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of 
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Wal-Mart” or the 
“company”). Significant intercompany transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation. Investments in which the company 
has a 20 percent to 50 percent voting interest and where the  
company exercises significant influence over the investee are 
accounted for using the equity method.

The company’s operations in Argentina, Brazil, China, Germany, 
Mexico, South Korea and the United Kingdom are consolidated 
using a December 31 fiscal year-end, generally due to statutory 
reporting requirements. There were no significant intervening 
events which materially affected the financial statements. The 
company’s operations in Canada and Puerto Rico are consolidated 
using a January 31 fiscal year-end.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The company considers investments with a maturity of three 
months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. The major-
ity of payments due from banks for third-party credit card, debit 
card and electronic benefit transactions (“EBT”) process within  
24-48 hours, except for transactions occurring on a Friday, which 
are generally processed the following Monday. All credit card, 
debit card and EBT transactions that process in less than seven 
days are classified as cash and cash equivalents. Amounts due from 
banks for these transactions classified as cash totaled $549 million 
and $866 million at January 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Receivables
Accounts receivable consist primarily of receivables from insurance 
companies resulting from our pharmacy sales, receivables from  
suppliers for marketing or incentive programs and receivables from 
real estate transactions. Additionally, amounts due from banks for 
customer credit card, debit card and EBT transactions that take in 
excess of seven days to process are classified as accounts receivable.

Inventories
The company values inventories at the lower of cost or market as 
determined primarily by the retail method of accounting, using the 
last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) method for substantially all merchandise 
inventories in the United States, except SAM’S CLUB merchandise, 
which is based on average cost using the LIFO method. Inventories 
of foreign operations are primarily valued by the retail method  
of accounting, using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method.  
At January 31, 2005 and 2004, our inventories valued at LIFO 
approximate those inventories if they were valued at FIFO.

Financial Instruments
The company uses derivative financial instruments for purposes 
other than trading to manage its exposure to interest and foreign 
exchange rates, as well as to maintain an appropriate mix of fixed- 
and floating-rate debt. Contract terms of a hedge instrument 
closely mirror those of the hedged item, providing a high degree 
of risk reduction and correlation. Contracts that are effective at 

meeting the risk reduction and correlation criteria are recorded 
using hedge accounting. If a derivative instrument is a hedge, 
depending on the nature of the hedge, changes in the fair value of 
the instrument will either be offset against the change in fair value 
of the hedged assets, liabilities or firm commitments through 
earnings or recognized in other comprehensive income until the 
hedged item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion of 
an instrument’s change in fair value will be immediately recognized 
in earnings. Instruments that do not meet the criteria for hedge 
accounting or contracts for which the company has not elected 
hedge accounting, are marked to fair value with unrealized gains 
or losses reported in earnings. 

Capitalized Interest
Interest costs capitalized on construction projects were $120 mil-
lion, $144 million, and $124 million in fiscal 2005, 2004, and 
2003, respectively.

Long-lived Assets
Management reviews long-lived assets for indicators of impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value may not be recoverable. The evaluation is done at 
the lowest level of cash flows, which is typically at the individual 
store level. Cash flows expected to be generated by the related 
assets are estimated over the asset’s useful life based on updated 
projections. If the evaluation indicates that the carrying amount  
of the asset may not be recoverable, the potential impairment is 
measured based on a projected discounted cash flow method 
using a discount rate that is considered to be commensurate with 
the risk inherent in the company’s current business model.

Goodwill and Other Acquired Intangible Assets
Goodwill is not amortized, rather it is evaluated for impairment 
annually or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the value of certain goodwill may be impaired. Other acquired 
intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the 
periods that expected economic benefits will be provided. These 
evaluations are based on discounted cash flows and incorporate 
the impact of existing company businesses. The analyses require 
significant Management judgment to evaluate the capacity of an 
acquired business to perform within projections. Historically, the 
company has generated sufficient returns to recover the cost of 
the goodwill and other intangible assets.

Goodwill is recorded on the balance sheet in the operating segments 
as follows (in millions):

     January 31, 2005 January 31, 2004

International  $ 10,498  $ 9,577 
SAM’S CLUB  305  305 

Total goodwill  $ 10,803  $ 9,882 

The change in the International segment’s goodwill is primarily 
the result of foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations. The fiscal 
2005 acquisition of Bompreço S.A. Supermercados do Nordeste 
also resulted in an increase to goodwill.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
W A L - M A R T
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Leases
The company estimates the expected term of a lease by assuming 
the exercise of renewal options where an economic penalty exists 
that would preclude the abandonment of the lease at the end of 
the initial non-cancelable term and the exercise of such renewal is 
at the sole discretion of the company. This expected term is used 
in the determination of whether a store lease is capital or operating 
and in the calculation of straight-line rent expense. Additionally, 
the useful life of leasehold improvements is limited by the expected 
lease term. If significant expenditures are made for leasehold 
improvements late in the expected term of a lease, judgment is 
applied to determine if a change in estimate has occurred, or if the 
leasehold improvements may have a useful life that is bound by the 
end of the original expected lease term.

Rent abatements and escalations are considered in the calculation 
of minimum lease payments in the company’s capital lease tests 
and in determining straight-line rent expense for operating leases.

Foreign Currency Translation
The assets and liabilities of all foreign subsidiaries are translated 
using exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The income state-
ments of foreign subsidiaries are translated using average exchange 
rates. Related translation adjustments are recorded as a component 
of other accumulated comprehensive income.

Revenue Recognition
The company recognizes sales revenue net of estimated sales 
returns at the time it sells merchandise to the customer, except for 
layaway transactions. The company recognizes layaway transactions 
when the customer satisfies all payment obligations and takes pos-
session of the merchandise. Customer purchases of Wal-Mart and 
SAM’S CLUB shopping cards are not recognized until the card is 
redeemed and the customer purchases merchandise by using the 
shopping card.

SAM’S CLUB Membership Fee Revenue Recognition
The company recognizes SAM’S CLUB membership fee revenues 
both in the United States and internationally over the term of the 
membership, which is 12 months. The following table details 
unearned revenues, membership fees received from members and 
the amount of revenues recognized in earnings for each of the fis-
cal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 (in millions): 

Year ended January 31, 2005 2004 2003

Deferred membership fee revenue,  
 beginning of year $ 449  $ 437 $ 387
Membership fees received 890  840 834
Membership fee revenue recognized (881)  (828) (784)
Deferred membership fee revenue,  
 end of year $ 458  $ 449  $ 437

SAM’S CLUB membership revenue is included in other income, net 
in the revenues section of the Consolidated Statements of Income.

The company’s deferred membership fee revenue is included in 
accrued liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The company’s 
analysis of historical membership fee refunds indicates that such 
refunds have been nominal. Accordingly, no reserve exists for 
membership fee refunds at January 31, 2005 and 2004.

Cost of Sales
Cost of sales includes actual product cost, change in inventory,  
the cost of transportation to the company’s warehouses from  
suppliers, the cost of transportation from the company’s ware-
houses to the stores and Clubs and the cost of warehousing  
for our SAM’S CLUB segment.

Payments from Suppliers
Wal-Mart receives money from suppliers for various programs,  
primarily volume incentives, warehouse allowances and reimburse-
ments for specific programs such as markdowns, margin protection 
and advertising. Substantially all allowances are accounted for  
as a reduction of purchases and recognized in our Consolidated 
Statements of Income when the related inventory is sold. 

Operating, Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Operating, selling, general and administrative expenses include all 
operating costs of the company that are not related to the transpor-
tation of products from the supplier to the warehouse or from the 
warehouse to the store. Additionally, the cost of warehousing and 
occupancy for our Wal-Mart Stores segment distribution facilities 
are included in operating, selling, general and administrative 
expenses. Because we do not include the cost of our Wal-Mart 
Stores segment distribution facilities in cost of sales, our gross profit 
and gross margin may not be comparable to those of other retailers 
that may include all costs related to their distribution facilities in 
costs of sales and in the calculation of gross profit and gross margin.

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and were $1.4 billion, 
$966 million and $676 million in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, 
respectively. Advertising costs consist primarily of print and televi-
sion advertisements. The increase in advertising costs in 2005 and 
2004 compared with 2003 is attributable to the adoption of Emerging 
Issues Task Force Consensus No. 02-16, “Accounting by a Reseller 
for Cash Consideration Received from a Vendor” (“EITF 02-16”). 
Upon adoption of EITF 02-16, the company began recognizing 
substantially all funds received from vendors as a reduction of 
inventory costs. Prior to the adoption of EITF 02-16, the company 
recorded a portion of consideration received from vendors as a 
reduction of expenses, such as advertising.

Pre-opening Costs
The costs of start-up activities, including organization costs and 
new store openings, are expensed as incurred.
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Stock-based Compensation
The company recognizes expense for its stock-based compensation 
based on the fair value of the awards that are granted. The fair value of 
stock options is estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes- 
Merton option valuation model which was developed for use in esti-
mating the fair value of exchange traded options that have no vesting 
restrictions and are fully transferable. Option valuation methods 
require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the 
expected stock price volatility. Measured compensation cost is rec-
ognized ratably over the vesting period of the related stock-based 
compensation award.

The fair value of the company’s stock options was estimated at the 
date of the grant using the following assumptions:

    2005 2004 2003

Dividend yield 1.1% 1.0% 0.7%
Volatility 23.2% 32.3% 32.1%
Risk-free interest rate 3.3% 2.8% 3.2%
Expected life in years 5.4 4.5  4.6
Weighted-average fair value 
 of options at grant date $11.39 $15.83 $15.67

Insurance/Self-Insurance
The company uses a combination of insurance, self-insured reten-
tion and self-insurance for a number of risks, including workers’ 
compensation, general liability, vehicle liability and the company-
funded portion of employee-related health care benefits. Liabilities 
associated with these risks are estimated in part by considering 
historical claims experience, demographic factors, severity factors 
and other actuarial assumptions. 

Depreciation and Amortization
Depreciation and amortization for financial statement purposes are 
provided on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives 
of the various assets. Depreciation expense, including amortization 
of property under capital leases for the years 2005, 2004 and 2003 
was $4.3 billion, $3.7 billion and $3.2 billion, respectively. For 
income tax purposes, accelerated methods of depreciation are used 
with recognition of deferred income taxes for the resulting temporary 
differences. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter 
of the estimated useful life of the asset or the remaining lease term. 
Estimated useful lives for financial statement purposes are as follows: 

Buildings and improvements   5 – 50 years
Fixtures and equipment   5 – 12 years
Transportation equipment   3 – 15 years
Internally developed software   3 years

Income Taxes
Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated 
future tax consequences attributable to differences between the 
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities 
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those 
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The 
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rate is 
recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. 
Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce 
deferred tax assets to the amounts more likely than not to be realized.

In determining the quarterly provision for income taxes, the company 
uses an annual effective tax rate based on expected annual income and 
statutory tax rates. The effective tax rate also reflects the company’s 
assessment of the ultimate outcome of tax audits. Significant or 
unusual items are recognized in the quarter in which they occur.

The determination of the company’s provision for income taxes 
requires significant judgment, the use of estimates, and the interpre-
tation and application of complex tax laws. Significant judgment is 
required in assessing the timing and amounts of deductible and tax-
able items. Reserves are established when, despite management’s 
belief that the company’s tax return positions are fully supportable, 
management believes that certain positions may be successfully 
challenged. When facts and circumstances change, these reserves 
are adjusted through the provision for income taxes.

Net Income Per Common Share
Basic net income per common share is based on the weighted-
average outstanding common shares. Diluted net income per com-
mon share is based on the weighted-average outstanding shares 
adjusted for the dilutive effect of stock options and restricted stock 
grants. The diluted effect of stock options and restricted stock was 
7 million, 10 million and 16 million shares in fiscal 2005, 2004 
and 2003, respectively. The company had approximately 59 mil-
lion, 50 million and 41 million option shares outstanding at 
January 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively, which were not 
included in the diluted net income per share calculation because 
their effect would be antidilutive as the underlying option price 
exceeded the average market price of the stock for the period.

Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles requires Management 
to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assump-
tions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. They also 
affect the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date 
of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results 
may differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior periods to con-
form to current presentations.

New Accounting Pronouncements
As is more fully discussed in Note 7, the company has various 
stock option compensation plans for its associates. On February 1, 
2003, the company adopted the expense recognition provisions of 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting 
and Disclosure of Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123”). 
Under SFAS 123, compensation expense is recognized based on 
the fair value of stock options granted. Upon the adoption of SFAS 
123, we retroactively restated the results of our operations for the 
accounting change. Following the provisions of SFAS 123, the con-
solidated statements of income for fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 
include $122 million, $102 million and $84 million, respectively, 
of after-tax stock option expense, which is approximately $0.03 per 
share in fiscal year 2005 and $0.02 per share for fiscal years 2004 
and 2003. In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards 
Board issued a revision of SFAS 123 (“SFAS 123(R)”). We adopted 
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the provisions of SFAS 123(R) upon its release. Prior to the adop-
tion of SFAS 123(R), we used the Black-Scholes-Merton formula to 
estimate the value of stock options granted to associates. We con-
tinue to use this acceptable option valuation model following our 
adoption of SFAS 123(R). SFAS 123(R) requires that the benefits  
of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost be 
reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash 
flow as required under previously effective accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States. The adoption of SFAS 
123(R) did not have a material impact on our results of operations, 
financial position or cash flows.

2 Commercial Paper and Long-term Debt
Information on short-term borrowings and interest rates is as fol-
lows (dollars in millions):

Fiscal year 2005 2004 2003

Maximum amount outstanding  
 at any month-end $7,782 $4,957 $4,226
Average daily short-term 
 borrowings $4,823 $1,498 $1,549
Weighted-average interest rate 1.6% 1.1% 1.7%

At January 31, 2005 and 2004, short-term borrowings consisted 
of $3.8 billion and $3.3 billion, respectively, of commercial paper. 
At January 31, 2005, the company had committed lines of $4.5 bil-
lion with 53 firms and banks, which were used to support commer-
cial paper, and committed and informal lines of credit with various 
banks totaling an additional $159 million.

Long-term debt at January 31, consists of (in millions):

Interest Rate Due by Fiscal Year 2005 2004

4.000 – 6.875% Notes due 2010 $  4,500 $  3,500
2.792 – 8.000%, Notes due 2007 3,164 2,130
LIBOR less 0.140%
4.550% – 7.250% Notes due 2014 2,883 2,854
4.150 – 5.875% Notes due 2006 2,597 2,597
LIBOR less 0.0425%
4.125%  Notes due 2012 2,000 –
5.750% – 7.550% Notes due 2031 1,941 1,912
5.250%  Notes due 2036 1,883 –
4.375%  Notes due 2008 1,500 1,500
3.375%  Notes due 2009 1,000 1,000
5.006%  Notes due 2019(1) 500 500
6.200%  Notes due 2011(1) 500 500
6.750%  Notes due 2024 250 250
6.550% – 7.500% Notes due 2005 – 1,750
8.500%  Notes due 2025 – 250
    Other (2) 1,128 1,263

     $23,846 $20,006

(1) Includes put option.
(2) Includes adjustments to debt hedged by derivatives.

The company has two separate issuances of $500 million debt 
with embedded put options. For the first issuance, beginning June 
2001, and each year thereafter, the holders of $500 million of the 
debt may require the company to repurchase the debt at face 
value, in addition to accrued and unpaid interest. The holders of 
the other $500 million issuance may put the debt back to the 
company at par plus accrued interest at any time. Both of these 
issuances have been classified as a current liability in the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Under the company’s most significant borrowing arrangements, 
the company is not required to observe financial covenants. 
However, under certain lines of credit totaling $4.5 billion which 
were undrawn as of January 31, 2005, the company has agreed to 
observe certain covenants, the most restrictive of which relates to 
minimum net worth levels and amounts of additional secured debt 
and long-term leases. The company was not in violation of these 
covenants at January 31, 2005.

Long-term debt is unsecured except for $68 million, which is col-
lateralized by property with an aggregate carrying value of approxi-
mately $171 million. Annual maturities of long-term debt during 
the next five years and thereafter are (in millions):

Fiscal Year Ended January 31,  Annual Maturity

2006     $   3,759
2007     3,400
2008     1,572
2009     1,037
2010     4,774
Thereafter   9,304
 Total    $ 23,846

The company has entered into sale/leaseback transactions involv-
ing buildings while retaining title to the underlying land. These 
transactions were accounted for as financings and are included in 
long-term debt and the annual maturities schedule above. The 
resulting obligations are amortized over the lease terms. Future 
minimum lease payments during the next five years and thereafter 
are (in millions):

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, Minimum Payments

2006   $   20
2007   18
2008   17
2009   11
2010   11
Thereafter 43
 Total  $ 120

At January 31, 2005 and 2004, the company had trade letters of 
credit outstanding totaling $2.6 billion and $2.0 billion, respectively. 
These letters of credit were issued primarily for the purchase of inven-
tory. At January 31, 2005 and 2004, the company had standby letters 
of credit outstanding totaling $2.0 billion and $1.4 billion, respectively. 
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3 Financial Instruments
The company uses derivative financial instruments for hedging and 
non-trading purposes to manage its exposure to interest and foreign 
exchange rates. Use of derivative financial instruments in hedging 
programs subjects the company to certain risks, such as market and 
credit risks. Market risk represents the possibility that the value of 
the derivative instrument will change. In a hedging relationship, the 
change in the value of the derivative is offset to a great extent by the 
change in the value of the underlying hedged item. Credit risk 
related to derivatives represents the possibility that the counterparty 
will not fulfill the terms of the contract. The notional, or contractual, 
amount of the company’s derivative financial instruments is used to 
measure interest to be paid or received and does not represent the 
company’s exposure due to credit risk. Credit risk is monitored 
through established approval procedures, including setting concen-
tration limits by counterparty, reviewing credit ratings and requiring 
collateral (generally cash) when appropriate. The majority of the 
company’s transactions are with counterparties rated “AA-” or  
better by nationally recognized credit rating agencies. 

Fair Value Instruments
The company enters into interest rate swaps to minimize the risks 
and costs associated with its financing activities. Under the swap agree-
ments, the company pays variable-rate interest and receives fixed-
rate interest payments periodically over the life of the instruments.  
The notional amounts are used to measure interest to be paid or 
received and do not represent the exposure due to credit loss. All of 
the company’s interest rate swaps that receive fixed interest rate 
payments and pay variable interest rate payments are designated as 
fair value hedges. As the specific terms and notional amounts of the 
derivative instruments exactly match those of the instruments being 

hedged, the derivative instruments were assumed to be perfect 
hedges and all changes in fair value of the hedges were recorded 
on the balance sheet with no net impact on the income statement. 

Net Investment Instruments
At January 31, 2005, the company is party to cross-currency interest 
rate swaps that hedge its net investments in the United Kingdom 
and Japan. The agreements are contracts to exchange fixed-rate 
payments in one currency for fixed-rate payments in another cur-
rency. The company also has outstanding approximately £2.0 bil-
lion of debt that is designated as a hedge of the company’s net 
investment in the United Kingdom. All changes in the fair value 
of these instruments are recorded in other comprehensive income, 
offsetting the foreign currency translation adjustment that is also 
recorded in other comprehensive income.

Cash Flow Instruments
The company is party to a cross-currency interest rate swap to hedge 
the foreign currency risk of certain foreign-denominated debt. The 
swap is designated as a cash flow hedge of foreign currency 
exchange risk. The agreement is a contract to exchange fixed-rate 
payments in one currency for fixed-rate payments in another currency. 
Changes in the foreign currency spot exchange rate result in reclassi-
fication of amounts from other accumulated comprehensive income 
to earnings to offset transaction gains or losses on foreign-denomi-
nated debt. The instrument matures in fiscal 2007.

The company expects that the amount of gain or loss existing in 
other accumulated comprehensive income to be reclassified into 
earnings within the next 12 months will not be significant.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Instrument Notional Amount Fair Value
Fiscal Year Ended January 31, (in millions) 2005 2004 2005 2004

Derivative financial instruments designated for hedging:
Receive fixed-rate, pay floating rate interest rate swaps designated as fair value hedges $  8,042 $   8,292 $     477 $      697
Receive fixed-rate, pay fixed-rate cross-currency interest rate swaps designated  
 as net investment hedges (Cross-currency notional amount: GBP 795 at  
 1/31/2005 and 1/31/2004) 1,250 1,250 (14) 29
Receive fixed-rate, pay fixed-rate cross-currency interest rate swap designated  
 as a cash flow hedge (Cross-currency notional amount: CAD 503 at  
 1/31/2005 and 1/31/2004) 325 325 (87) (54)
Receive fixed-rate, pay fixed-rate cross-currency interest rate swap designated  
 as a net investment hedge (Cross-currency notional amount: ¥52,056 at  
 1/31/2005 and 1/31/2004) 432 432 (68) (46)
Receive floating rate, pay fixed-rate interest rate swap designated  
 as a cash flow hedge 1,500 1,500 (5) (16)

    $11,549 $11,799 $     303 $     610

Non-derivative financial instruments:
Long-term debt $23,846 $20,006 $25,016 $21,349



Hedging instruments with a favorable fair value are recorded on 
the Consolidated Balance Sheets as other current assets or other 
assets and deferred charges, based on maturity date. Those instru-
ments with an unfavorable fair value are recorded in accrued liabil-
ities or deferred income taxes and other, based on maturity date.

Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amount approximates fair 
value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Long-term debt: Fair value is based on the company’s current incre-
mental borrowing rate for similar types of borrowing arrangements.

Interest rate instruments and net investment instruments: The fair  
values are estimated amounts the company would receive or pay 
to terminate the agreements as of the reporting dates.

4 Other Accumulated Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income is net income plus certain other items that are recorded directly to shareholders’ equity. Amounts included in  
other accumulated comprehensive income for the company’s derivative instruments and minimum pension liability are recorded net  
of the  
comprehensive income during fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 (in millions):

    Foreign Currency  Derivative Minimum
    Translation Instruments Pension Liability Total

Balance at January 31, 2002 $(2,238) $  970  $       – $(1,268)

Foreign currency translation adjustment 1,113   1,113 
Change in fair value of hedge instruments  (164)  (164)
Reclassification to earnings   16  16 
Subsidiary minimum pension liability   (206) (206)

Balance at January 31, 2003 (1,125) 822  (206) (509)

Foreign currency translation adjustment 1,685   1,685 
Change in fair value of hedge instruments  (444)  (444)
Reclassification to earnings  103  103 
Subsidiary minimum pension liability   16  16 

Balance at January 31, 2004 560 481  (190)  851 

Foreign currency translation adjustment 2,130   2,130 
Change in fair value of hedge instruments  (235)  (235)
Reclassification to earnings  41  41 
Subsidiary minimum pension liability   (93) (93)

Balance at January 31, 2005 $2,690 $287  $(283) $2,694 

5 Income Taxes
The income tax provision consists of the following (in millions):

Fiscal years ended January 31, 2005 2004 2003

Current:
 Federal $4,116 $4,039 $3,299
 State and local 640 333 229
 International 570 569 355

Total current tax provision 5,326 4,941 3,883

Deferred:
 Federal 311 31 305
 State and local (71) 2 26
 International 23 144 143

Total deferred tax provision 263 177 474
Total provision for  
 income taxes $5,589 $5,118 $4,357

Income from continuing operations before income taxes and 
minority interest is as follows (in millions):

Fiscal years ended January 31, 2005 2004 2003

 United States $13,599 $12,075 $10,490
 Outside the United States 2,506 2,118 1,878
Total income from continuing  
 operations before income  
 taxes and minority interest $16,105  $14,193  $12,368 
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Items that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax 
accounts are as follows (in millions):

January 31,  2005 2004

Deferred tax liabilities
 Property and equipment  $2,045 $1,581
 International, principally asset  
  basis difference  1,054 1,087
 Inventory  187 419
 Capital leases  165 92
 Other  230 146

Total deferred tax liabilities  $3,681 $3,325

Deferred tax assets
 Amounts accrued for financial  
  reporting purposes not yet  
  deductible for tax purposes  $1,361 $1,280
 International loss carryforwards  1,460 1,186
 Deferred revenue  15 140
 Other  506 298

Total deferred tax assets  3,342 2,904
Valuation allowance  (526) (344)
Total deferred tax assets, net of  
 valuation allowance  $2,816 $2,560

Net deferred tax liabilities  $   865 $   765

A reconciliation of the significant differences between the effective 
income tax rate and the federal statutory rate on pretax income is 
as follows:

Fiscal years ended January 31, 2005 2004 2003

Statutory tax rate 35.00%  35.00%  35.00% 
State income taxes, net of  
 federal income tax benefit 2.30%  1.53%  1.36% 
Income taxes outside the  
 United States (1.81%) (0.20%) (1.29%)
Other  (0.79%) (0.27%) 0.16% 

Effective income tax rate 34.70%  36.06%  35.23% 

Federal and state income taxes have not been provided on accumu-
lated but undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries aggregating 
approximately $5.3 billion at January 31, 2005 and $4.0 billion at 
January 31, 2004, as such earnings have been permanently reinvested 
in the business. The determination of the amount of the unrecognized 
deferred tax liability related to the undistributed earnings is not 
practicable. The American Jobs Creation Act, which was signed 
into law on October 22, 2004, created a special one-time tax 
deduction relating to the repatriation of certain foreign earnings. 
The company has not completed its evaluation of the likelihood of 
repatriation of our foreign earnings and the resulting effect of the 
one-time tax deduction.

A valuation allowance has been established to reduce certain foreign 
subsidiaries’ deferred tax assets relating primarily to net operating 
loss carryforwards. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, as the 
result of new tax legislation in Germany, we re-evaluated the recov-
erability of the deferred tax asset related to our German operations. 
Based on the results of our review, we recorded a valuation allow-
ance resulting in a charge of $150 million. 

6 Acquisitions and Disposal

Acquisitions
In February 2004, the company completed its purchase of 
Bompreço S.A. Supermercados do Nordeste (“Bompreço”), a 
supermarket chain in northern Brazil with 118 hypermarkets, 
supermarkets and mini-markets. The purchase price was approxi-
mately $315 million, net of cash acquired. The results of opera-
tions for Bompreço, which were not material to the company, have 
been included in the company’s consolidated financial  
statements since the date of acquisition.

During May 2002, the company acquired its initial 6.1% stake in 
The Seiyu, Ltd. (“Seiyu”), a Japanese retail chain, for approximately 
$51 million. In December 2002, the company exercised in full the 
first in the series of warrants granted allowing us to acquire 192.8 
million new shares in Seiyu for approximately $432 million. 
Following this exercise and our purchase of 29.3 million additional 
Seiyu shares in other Seiyu securities offerings, our ownership per-
centage in Seiyu increased to approximately 37%. Through a series 
of warrants exercisable through 2007, the company can contribute 
approximately ¥235 billion, or $2.3 billion at a January 31, 2005, 
exchange rate of 103.68 yen per dollar, for additional shares of 
Seiyu stock. If all the warrants are exercised, we will own approxi-
mately 70% of the stock of Seiyu by the end of December 2007. If 
the next tranche of warrants is exercised in December 2005, the 
company will own more than 50% of Seiyu. 

Also, in December 2002, the company completed its purchase of 
Supermercados Amigo, Inc. (“Amigo”), a supermarket chain located 
in Puerto Rico with 37 supermarkets, six of which were subsequently 
sold. The purchase price of approximately $242 million was financed 
by commercial paper. The transaction resulted in approximately 
$197 million of goodwill. The results of operations, which were 
not material, are included in the consolidated company results 
since the date of acquisition.

Disposal
On May 23, 2003, the company completed the sale of McLane 
Company, Inc. (“McLane”). The company received $1.5 billion in 
cash for the sale. The accompanying consolidated financial state-
ments and notes reflect the gain on the sale and the operations  
of McLane as a discontinued operation.

Following is summarized financial information for McLane  
(in millions):

Fiscal years ended January 31,  2004 2003

Net sales  $4,328 $14,907 

Income from discontinued operation   $     67 $     221 
Income tax expense   25  84 

 Net operating income from  
  discontinued operation  $     42 $     137 
Gain on sale of McLane, net of  
  $147 income tax expense  151 –
Income from discontinued operation, net of tax $   193  $     137
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The effective tax rate on the gain from the sale of McLane was  
49% as a result of the non-deductibility of $99 million of goodwill 
recorded in the original McLane acquisition.

7 Stock-Based Compensation Plans
On February 1, 2003, the company adopted the expense recogni-
tion provisions of SFAS 123. Under SFAS 123, compensation expense 
is recognized based on the fair value of stock options granted. As a 
result, all prior periods presented have been restated to reflect the 
compensation cost that would have been recognized had the recog-
nition provisions of SFAS 123 been applied to all awards granted 
to employees since February 1, 1995. Following the provisions of 
SFAS 123, fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003 include $122 million, 
$102 million and $84 million, respectively, of after-tax stock 
option expense, which is approximately $0.03 per share in fiscal 
year 2005 and $0.02 per share for fiscal years 2004 and 2003. 

In the United States and certain other countries, options granted 
under the stock option plans generally expire 10 years from the date 
of grant. Options granted prior to November 17, 1995, vest over 
nine years. Generally, options granted on or after November 17, 
1995 and before fiscal 2001 vest over seven years. Options granted 

after fiscal 2001 vest over five years. Shares issued upon the exer-
cise of options are newly issued.

The company’s United Kingdom subsidiary, ASDA, offers two  
different stock option plans to associates. The first plan, The ASDA 
Colleague Share Ownership Plan 1999 (“CSOP”) grants options to 
certain associates. Options granted under the CSOP Plan generally 
expire six years from the date of grant, with half vesting on the third 
anniversary of the date of grant and the other half on the sixth anni-
versary of the date of grant. The second plan, The ASDA Sharesave 
Plan 2000 (“Sharesave”), grants options to certain associates at 80% 
of market value on date of grant. Sharesave options become exercis-
able after either a three-year or five-year period and generally lapse 
six months after becoming exercisable.

At January 31, 2005, total unrecognized compensation cost for 
unvested stock option awards was $478 million, with a weighted-
average remaining vesting period of 3.6 years. 

At January 31, 2005, the aggregate intrinsic value of stock  
options outstanding and exercisable was $490 million and  
$361 million, respectively. 

The following table summarizes additional information about stock options outstanding as of January 31, 2005:

    Number of Weighted-Average Weighted-Average  Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Range of  Outstanding Remaining Life Exercise Price of Number of Remaining Life Exercise Price of
Exercise Prices Options in Years Outstanding Options Options Exercisable in Years Exercisable Options

$ 4.24 to 11.19 700,000 1.1 $11.12 689,000 1.1 $11.12
 11.75 to 13.63 3,085,000 1.5 11.84 3,067,000 1.5 11.84
 17.53 to 23.33 3,819,000 3.0 19.35 3,764,000 3.0 19.35
 25.00 to 38.72 2,233,000 5.6 35.23 462,000 5.3 26.86
 39.86 to 45.69 5,624,000 5.6 40.34 2,648,000 4.0 40.15
 46.00 to 54.98 54,889,000 8.3 50.76 12,770,000 6.7 49.57
 55.25 to 60.90 10,041,000 7.2 56.51 4,303,000 7.0 56.43

$ 4.24 to 60.90 80,391,000 7.3 $47.03 27,703,000 5.2 $40.12

Further information concerning the options is as follows:
      Option Price Weighted-Average
     Shares Per Share Per Share Total

January 31, 2002  53,470,000  $      4.24 – 63.44 $   32.25 $     1,724,537,000
(16,823,000 shares exercisable)
Options granted  15,267,000  48.41 – 57.80 54.32 829,244,000 
Options canceled  (3,037,000) 4.24 – 63.44 42.07 (127,752,000)
Options exercised  (6,595,000) 4.24 – 55.94 23.90 (157,588,000)

January 31, 2003  59,105,000  $      4.24 – 60.90 $   38.38 $     2,268,441,000
(20,053,000 shares exercisable)
Options granted  26,136,000  47.02 – 59.92 49.65  1,297,604,000 
Options canceled  (4,006,000)  4.24 – 60.90 45.09  (180,666,000)
Options exercised  (7,488,000)  4.24 – 56.80 22.89  (171,389,000)

January 31, 2004  73,747,000  $      4.24 – 60.90 $   43.58  $     3,213,990,000
(23,763,000 shares exercisable) 
Options granted  18,575,000  44.60 – 60.46 52.37  972,825,000 
Options canceled  (3,563,000)  4.24 – 58.10 48.01  (171,026,000)
Options exercised  (8,368,000)  4.24 – 56.80 28.08  (234,986,000)

January 31, 2005  80,391,000  $  4.24 – 60.90 $47.03  $3,780,803,000
(27,703,000 shares exercisable)

At January 31, 2005 and 2004, there were 87.5 million and 102.5 million shares, respectively, available for grant under the company’s 
stock option plans.
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The total intrinsic value of options exercised in fiscal 2005, 2004 
and 2003 was $236 million, $251 million and $252 million, 
respectively. The income tax benefit resulting from the tax deduc-
tions triggered by employee exercise of stock options amounted to 
$78 million, $83 million and $84 million in fiscal 2005, 2004 
and 2003, respectively.

The company issues restricted (non-vested) stock to certain  
associates which vests based on passage of time. Restricted stock 
awards are not included in the preceding tables. Restricted stock 
awards generally vest 25 percent after three years, 25 percent after 
five years and 50 percent at age 65. At January 31, 2005, 3 million 
restricted stock shares with vesting based on the passage of time 
were outstanding, with a weighted-average grant date value of $46.63.

The company issues stock-based awards for which vesting is tied 
to the achievement of performance criteria. These awards accrue  
to the associate based on the extent to which revenue growth and 
return on investment goals are attained or exceeded over a three-
year period. Based on the extent to which the targets are achieved, 
vested shares may range from 0% to 150% of the original award 
amount. At January 31, 2005, awards representing 1.7 million 
shares were outstanding with a weighted-average grant date  
value of $53.15 per share. These awards are not included in the 
preceding table.

8 Litigation
The company is involved in a number of legal proceedings, which 
include consumer, employment, tort and other litigation. The law-
suits discussed below, if decided adversely to or settled by the 
company, may result in liability material to the company’s finan-
cial condition or results of operations. The company may enter 
into discussions regarding settlement of these and other lawsuits, 
and may enter into settlement agreements, if it believes settlement 
is in the best interests of the company’s shareholders. In accor-
dance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, 
“Accounting for Contingencies,” the company has made accruals 
with respect to these lawsuits, where appropriate, which are 
reflected in the company’s consolidated financial statements.

The company is a defendant in numerous cases containing 
class-action allegations in which the plaintiffs have brought claims 
under the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”), corresponding state 
statutes, or other laws. The plaintiffs in these lawsuits are current 
and former hourly associates who allege, among other things, that 
the company forced them to work “off the clock” and failed to 
provide work breaks. The complaints generally seek unspecified 
monetary damages, injunctive relief, or both. Class certification 
has yet to be addressed in a majority of the cases. Class certifica-
tion has been denied or overturned in Arizona, Arkansas, Florida, 
Georgia, Indiana, Louisiana, Maryland, Michigan, North Carolina, 
Ohio, Texas (state court), West Virginia, and Wisconsin. Some or 
all of the requested classes have been certified in California, 
Colorado, Massachusetts, Minnesota, Oregon, and Washington. 
Conditional certifications for notice purposes under the FLSA 
have been allowed in Georgia, Michigan, and Texas (federal court).

A putative class action is pending in California challenging the 
methodology of payments made under various associate incentive 
bonus plans, and a second putative class action in California 
asserts that the company has omitted to include bonus payments 
in calculating associates’ regular rate of pay for purposes of deter-
mining overtime.

The company is currently a defendant in four putative class actions 
brought on behalf of assistant store managers who challenge their 
exempt status under the FLSA, which are pending in federal courts 
in Michigan, New Mexico, and Tennessee. A similar putative class 
action challenging the exempt status of Wal-Mart assistant store 
managers under California law has been filed in Los Angeles 
County Superior Court. No determination has been made as to 
class certification in any of these cases.

The company is a defendant in Dukes v. Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., a class-
action lawsuit commenced in June 2001 and pending in the United 
States District Court for the Northern District of California. The case 
was brought on behalf of all past and present female employees in all 
of the company’s retail stores and wholesale clubs in the United 
States. The complaint alleges that the company has engaged in a pat-
tern and practice of discriminating against women in promotions, pay, 
training and job assignments. The complaint seeks, among other 
things, injunctive relief, front pay, back pay, punitive damages, and 
attorneys’ fees. Following a hearing on class certification on 
September 24, 2003, on June 21, 2004, the District Court issued an 
order granting in part and denying in part the plaintiffs’ motion for 
class certification. The class, which was certified by the District 
Court for purposes of liability, injunctive and declaratory relief, puni-
tive damages, and lost pay, subject to certain exceptions, includes all 
women employed at any Wal-Mart domestic retail store at any time 
since December 26, 1998, who have been or may be subjected to 
the pay and management track promotions policies and practices 
challenged by the plaintiffs. The class as certified currently includes 
approximately 1.6 million present and former female associates.

The company believes that the District Court’s ruling is incorrect. 
The United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit has granted 
the company’s petition for discretionary review of the ruling. If the 
company is not successful in its appeal of class certification, or an 
appellate court issues a ruling that allows for the certification of a 
class or classes with a different size or scope, and if there is a sub-
sequent adverse verdict on the merits from which there is no suc-
cessful appeal, or in the event of a negotiated settlement of the 
litigation, the resulting liability could be material to the company. 
The plaintiffs also seek punitive damages which, if awarded, could 
result in the payment of additional amounts material to the company. 
However, because of the uncertainty of the outcome of the appeal 
from the District Court’s certification decision, because of the 
uncertainty of the balance of the proceedings contemplated by the 
District Court, and because the company’s liability, if any, arising 
from the litigation, including the size of any damages award if 
plaintiffs are successful in the litigation or any negotiated settlement, 
could vary widely, the company cannot reasonably estimate the 
possible loss or range of loss which may arise from the litigation.
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The company is a defendant in four putative class-action lawsuits, 
three of which are pending in Texas, and one in Oklahoma. In each 
lawsuit, the plaintiffs seek a declaratory judgment that Wal-Mart and 
the other defendants who purchased Corporate-Owned Life Insurance 
(“COLI”) policies lacked an insurable interest in the lives of the 
employees who were insured under the policies, and seek to recover 
the proceeds of the policies under theories of unjust enrichment 
and constructive trust. In some of the suits, the plaintiffs assert 
other causes of action, and seek punitive damages. In January 2004, 
the parties to the first-filed Texas lawsuit signed a settlement agree-
ment, which received final approval from the court on October 28, 
2004. The settlement will include all Texas COLI claimants who  
do not opt out of the settlement class. The amount to be paid by 
Wal-Mart under the settlement will not have a material impact on 
the company’s financial condition or results of operations. In the 
Oklahoma litigation, the court has deferred ruling on plaintiffs’ 
request to add 11 additional states to the litigation, pending a rul-
ing on the company’s motion for summary judgment.

The company is a defendant in Mauldin v. Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.,  
a class-action lawsuit that was filed on October 16, 2001, in the 
United States District Court for the Northern District of Georgia, 
Atlanta Division. The class was certified on August 23, 2002. On 
September 30, 2003, the court denied the company’s motion to 
reconsider that ruling. The class is composed of female Wal-Mart 
associates who were participants in the associates Health and 
Welfare Plan at any time from March 8, 2001, to the present and 
who were using prescription contraceptives. The class seeks amend-
ment of the Plan to include coverage for prescription contraceptives, 
back pay for all members in the form of reimbursement of the cost 
of prescription contraceptives, pre-judgment interest, and attorneys’ 
fees. The complaint alleges that the company’s Health Plan violates 
Title VII’s prohibition against gender discrimination in that the 
Health Plan’s Reproductive Systems provision does not provide  
coverage for prescription contraceptives.

The company is a defendant in a lawsuit that was filed on August 
24, 2001, in the United States District Court for the Eastern 
District of Kentucky. EEOC (Janice Smith) v. Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. is 
an action brought by the EEOC on behalf of Janice Smith and all 
other females who made application or transfer requests at the 
London, Kentucky, Distribution Center from 1995 to the present, 
and who were not hired or transferred into the warehouse posi-
tions for which they applied. The class seeks back pay for those 
females not selected for hire or transfer during the relevant time 
period. The class also seeks injunctive and prospective affirmative 
relief. The complaint alleges that the company based hiring deci-
sions on gender in violation of Title VII of the 1964 Civil Rights 
Act as amended. The EEOC can maintain this action as a class 
without certification.

9 Commitments
The company and certain of its subsidiaries have long-term leases 
for stores and equipment. Rentals (including, for certain leases, 
amounts applicable to taxes, insurance, maintenance, other oper-
ating expenses and contingent rentals) under operating leases and 
other short-term rental arrangements were $1.2 billion, $1.1 bil-
lion, and $1.1 billion in 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. 
Aggregate minimum annual rentals at January 31, 2005, under 
non-cancelable leases are as follows (in millions):

     Operating Capital
Fiscal year  Leases Leases

2006    $   730 $   521
2007    700 514
2008    626 505
2009    578 490
2010    530 468
Thereafter  5,908 3,222

Total minimum rentals  $9,072 5,720
Less estimated executory costs   42

Net minimum lease payments   5,678
Less imputed interest at rates ranging  
 from 4.2% to 14.0%   1,886

Present value of minimum lease payments  $3,792

The company has entered into sale/leaseback transactions involv-
ing buildings and the underlying land that were accounted for as 
capital and operating leases. Included in the annual maturities 
schedule above are $308 million of capital leases and $32 million 
of operating leases.

Certain of the company’s leases provide for the payment of  
contingent rentals based on a percentage of sales. Such contingent 
rentals amounted to $42 million, $46 million and $51 million  
in 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Substantially all of the  
company’s store leases have renewal options, some of which  
may trigger an escalation in rentals.

In connection with the expansion of our distribution network in 
Canada, we have guaranteed specific obligations of a third-party 
logistics provider. In the unlikely event this provider fails to perform 
its financial obligations regarding certain Wal-Mart related projects, 
we would be obligated to pay an amount of up to $118 million. 
These agreements cover periods of up to 10 years.

In connection with certain debt financing, we could be liable for 
early termination payments if certain unlikely events were to occur. 
At January 31, 2005, the aggregate termination payment was $113 
million. These arrangements expire in fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2019.
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In connection with the development of our grocery distribution 
network in the United States, we have agreements with third par-
ties which would require us to purchase or assume the leases on 
certain unique equipment in the event the agreements are termi-
nated. These agreements, which can be terminated by either party 
at will, cover up to a five-year period and obligate the company to 
pay up to approximately $163 million upon termination of some 
or all of these agreements. 

There are no recourse provisions which would enable us to 
recover from third parties any amounts paid under the above 
guarantees. No liability for these guarantees has been recorded  
in our financial statements.

The company has entered into lease commitments for land and 
buildings for 46 future locations. These lease commitments with  
real estate developers provide for minimum rentals ranging from  
5-30 years, which if consummated based on current cost estimates, 
will approximate $30 million annually over the lease terms.

10 Retirement-Related Benefits
In the United States, the company maintains a Profit Sharing and 
401(k) Retirement Savings Plan under which most full-time and 
many part-time associates become participants following one year 
of employment. The Profit Sharing component of the plan is 
entirely funded by the company, with an additional contribution 
made by the company to the associates’ 401(k) component of the 
plan. In addition to the company contributions to the 401(k) 
Retirement Savings component of the plan, associates may elect to 
contribute a percentage of their earnings. During fiscal 2005, par-
ticipants could contribute up to 25% of their pretax earnings, but 
not more than statutory limits. 

Associates may choose from among 13 different investment options 
for the 401(k) Retirement Savings component of the plan. For 
associates who did not make an election, their 401(k) balance in 
the plan is placed in a balanced fund. Associates are immediately 
vested in their 401(k) funds and may change their investment 
options at any time. Additionally, fully vested associates have the 
same 13 investment options for the Profit Sharing component of 
the plan. Associates are fully vested in the Profit Sharing compo-
nent of the plan after seven years of service. 

Annual contributions made by the company to the United States 
and Puerto Rico Profit Sharing and 401(k) Retirement Savings 
Plans are made at the sole discretion of the company, and were 
$756 million, $662 million and $574 million in fiscal 2005, 
2004, and 2003, respectively. 

Employees in foreign countries who are not U.S. citizens are covered 
by various postemployment benefit arrangements. These plans are 
administered based upon the legislative and tax requirements in the 
country in which they are established. Annual contributions to for-
eign retirement savings and profit sharing plans are made at the dis-
cretion of the company, and were $199 million, $123 million and 
$132 million in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The company’s United Kingdom subsidiary, ASDA, has a defined 
benefit pension plan. The plan was underfunded by $419 million 
and $328 million at January 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

11 Segments
The company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the 
operation of retail stores located in all 50 states, Argentina, Canada, 
Germany, South Korea, Puerto Rico and the United Kingdom, 
through joint ventures in China, and through majority-owned  
subsidiaries in Brazil and Mexico. The company identifies segments 
based on management responsibility within the United States and 
in total for international units. 

The Wal-Mart Stores segment includes the company’s Supercenters, 
Discount Stores and Neighborhood Markets in the United States 
as well as Walmart.com. The SAM’S CLUB segment includes the 
warehouse membership clubs in the United States as well as sams-
club.com. The International segment consists of the company’s 
operations in Argentina, Brazil, China, Germany, Mexico, South 
Korea and the United Kingdom, which are consolidated using a 
December 31 fiscal year-end, generally due to statutory reporting 
requirements. There were no significant intervening events which 
materially affected the financial statements. The company’s opera-
tions in Canada and Puerto Rico are consolidated using a January 
31 fiscal year-end. The amounts under the caption “Other” in the 
following table are unallocated corporate overhead, including our 
real estate operations in the United States. The company’s portion 
of the results of our unconsolidated minority interest in Seiyu, is also 
included under the caption “Other.”
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The company measures the profit of its segments as “segment operating income,” which is defined as income from continuing operations 
before net interest expense, income taxes and minority interest. Information on segments and the reconciliation to income from continuing 
operations before income taxes and minority interest are as follows (in millions):

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2005 Wal-Mart Stores SAM’S CLUB International Other Consolidated

Revenues from external customers $191,826 $37,119 $56,277 $         –  $285,222 
Intercompany real estate charge (income) 2,754  513  – (3,267) –
Depreciation and amortization 1,702  274  919  1,510  4,405 

Operating income (loss) 14,163  1,280  2,988  (1,340) 17,091 
Interest expense, net     (986)

Income from continuing operations before  
 income taxes and minority interest     $  16,105 

Total assets of continuing operations $  29,489  $  5,685  $40,981  $44,068  $120,223 

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2004 Wal-Mart Stores SAM’S CLUB International Other Consolidated

Revenues from external customers $   174,220 $   34,537 $   47,572  $           –  $   256,329 
Intercompany real estate charge (income) 2,468  484  – (2,952) –
Depreciation and amortization 1,482  249  810  1,311  3,852 

Operating income (loss) 12,916  1,126  2,370  (1,387) 15,025 
Interest expense, net     (832)

Income from continuing operations before  
 income taxes and minority interest     $     14,193 

Total assets of continuing operations $     27,028  $     4,751  $  35,230  $  38,396  $   105,405 

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2003 Wal-Mart Stores SAM’S CLUB International Other Consolidated

Revenues from external customers $   157,120  $   31,702  $  40,794  $           –  $   229,616 
Intercompany real estate charge (income) 2,228  453  –  (2,681) – 
Depreciation and amortization 1,287  216  639  1,222  3,364 

Operating income (loss) 11,840  1,023  1,998  (1,566) 13,295 
Interest expense, net     (927)

Income from continuing operations before  
 income taxes and minority interest     $     12,368 

Total assets of continuing operations $     24,868  $     4,404  $  30,709  $  32,919  $     92,900 

Certain information for fiscal years 2004 and 2003 has been reclassified to conform to current-year presentation. 

In the United States, long-lived assets, net, excluding goodwill were $48.9 billion and $42.7 billion January 31, 2005 and 2004, respec-
tively. In the United States, additions to long-lived assets were $9.8 billion, $8.1 billion and $7.4 billion at January 31, 2005, 2004 and 
2003, respectively. Outside of the United States, long-lived assets, net, excluding goodwill were $19.7 billion and $16.4 billion in fiscal 2005 
and 2004, respectively. Outside of the United States, additions to long-lived assets were $3.1 billion, $2.2 billion and $1.8 billion in fiscal 
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The International segment includes all real estate outside the United States. The operations of the 
company’s ASDA subsidiary are significant in comparison to the total operations of the International segment. ASDA sales during fiscal 
2005, 2004 and 2003 were $26.0 billion, $21.7 billion and $18.1 billion, respectively. At January 31, 2005 and 2004, ASDA long-lived 
assets, consisting primarily of property and equipment, net, and goodwill, net, totaled $18.9 billion and $16.3 billion, respectively.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
W A L - M A R T
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12 Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
 Quarters ended
Amounts in millions except per share information April 30, July 31, October 31, January 31,

2005
Net sales $64,763 $69,722 $68,520 $82,216
Cost of sales 49,969 53,533 52,567 63,723
Income from continuing operations  2,166 2,651 2,286 3,164
Net income $  2,166 $  2,651 $  2,286 $  3,164
Basic and diluted net income per common share $    0.50 $    0.62 $    0.54 $    0.75

2004
Net sales $56,718 $62,637 $62,480 $74,494
Cost of sales 43,918 48,298 48,292 58,239
Income from continuing operations 1,830 2,283 2,028 2,722
Income from discontinued operation 31 161  –   – 
Net income $  1,861 $  2,444 $  2,028 $  2,722
Basic net income per common share:  
 Income from continuing operations $    0.41 $    0.52 $    0.46 $    0.63
 Income from discontinued operation 0.01 0.04  –   – 
 Basic net income per common share $    0.42 $    0.56 $    0.46 $    0.63
Diluted net income per common share:  
 Income from continuing operations $    0.41 $    0.52 $    0.46 $    0.63
 Income from discontinued operation 0.01 0.04  –   – 
 Diluted net income per common share $    0.42 $    0.56 $    0.46 $    0.63

The sum of quarterly financial data will not agree to annual amounts due to rounding.

13 Subsequent Event
On March 3, 2005, the company’s Board of Directors approved an annual dividend of $0.60 per share. The annual dividend will be paid 
in four quarterly installments on April 4, 2005, June 6, 2005, September 6, 2005, and January 3, 2006 to holders of record on March 
18, May 20, August 19 and December 16, 2005, respectively.
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The Board of Directors and Shareholders, 
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets 
of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. as of January 31, 2005 and 2004, and the 
related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity 
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
January 31, 2005. These financial statements are the responsibility 
of the company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, 
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis 
for our opinion.
 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of 
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. at January 31, 2005 and 2004, and the con-
solidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the 
three years in the period ended January 31, 2005, in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the  
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),  
the effectiveness of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.’s internal control over  
financial reporting as of January 31, 2005, based on criteria  
established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by 
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway  
Commission and our report dated March 25, 2005 expressed  
an unqualified opinion thereon.

Rogers, Arkansas
March 25, 2005

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
W A L - M A R T
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
W A L - M A R T

The Board of Directors and Shareholders, 
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the 
accompanying Management’s Report to Our Shareholders 
under the caption “Report on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting,” that Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. maintained effective internal 
control over financial reporting as of January 31, 2005, based on 
criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued 
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway 
Commission (the COSO criteria). Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.’s manage-
ment is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over 
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over finan-
cial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the 
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal con-
trol over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. 
Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control 
over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, test-
ing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of inter-
nal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides  
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of 
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted account-
ing principles. A company’s internal control over financial report-
ing includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisi-
tion, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial 
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.  Also, projec-
tions of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject 
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. 
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of 
January 31, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on 
the COSO criteria.  Also, in our opinion, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., main-
tained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial 
reporting as of January 31, 2005, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consoli-
dated balance sheets of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. as of January 31, 2005 
and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, 
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in 
the period ended January 31, 2005 and our report dated March 25, 
2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Rogers, Arkansas
March 25, 2005
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Management of Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (“Wal-Mart”) is responsible 
for the preparation, integrity and objectivity of Wal-Mart’s consoli-
dated financial statements and other financial information con-
tained in this Annual Report to Shareholders. Those consolidated 
financial statements were prepared in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States. In preparing 
those consolidated financial statements, Management was required 
to make certain estimates and judgments, which are based upon 
currently available information and Management’s view of current 
conditions and circumstances.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, which consists 
solely of independent directors, oversees our process of reporting 
financial information and the audit of our consolidated financial 
statements. The Audit Committee stays informed of the finan-
cial condition of Wal-Mart and regularly reviews Management’s 
financial policies and procedures, the independence of our inde-
pendent auditors, our internal control and the objectivity of our 
financial reporting. Both the independent auditors and the inter-
nal auditors have free access to the Audit Committee and meet 
with the Audit Committee periodically, both with and without 
Management present.

We have retained Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered 
public accounting firm, to audit our consolidated financial statements 
found in this annual report. We have made available to Ernst & Young 
LLP all of our financial records and related data in connection with 
their audit of our consolidated financial statements.

We have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission the 
required certifications related to our consolidated financial state-
ments as of and for the year ended January 31, 2005. These cer-
tifications are attached as exhibits to our Annual Report on Form 
10-K for the year ended January 31, 2005. Additionally, we have 
also provided to the New York Stock Exchange the required annual 
certification of our Chief Executive Officer regarding our compli-
ance with the New York Stock Exchange’s corporate governance 
listing standards.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting.
Management has responsibility for establishing and maintaining 
adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control 
over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reason-
able assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external reporting purposes 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control 
over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. 
Management has assessed the effectiveness of the company’s inter-
nal control over financial reporting as of January 31, 2005. In mak-
ing its assessment, Management has utilized the criteria set forth 
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (“COSO”) of the 
Treadway Commission in Internal Control – Integrated Framework. 
Management concluded that based on its assessment, Wal-Mart’s 
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of January 
31, 2005. Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the 
company’s internal control over financial reporting as of January 31, 
2005 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent regis-
tered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears 
in this Annual Report to Shareholders.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures.  
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures designed to  
provide reasonable assurance that information, which is required 
to be timely disclosed, is accumulated and communicated to 
Management in a timely fashion. Management has assessed the 
effectiveness of these disclosure controls and procedures as of 
January 31, 2005 and determined they were effective as of that 
date to provide reasonable assurance that information required 
to be disclosed by us in the reports we file or submit under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is accumulated and 
communicated to Management, as appropriate, to allow timely 
decisions regarding required disclosure and are effective to provide 
reasonable assurance that such information is recorded, processed, 
summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the 
SEC’s rules and forms.

Report on Ethical Standards. 
Our company was founded on the belief that open communica-
tions and the highest standard of ethics are necessary to be suc-
cessful. Our long-standing “Open Door” communication policy 
helps Management be aware of and address issues in a timely and 
effective manner. Through the open door policy all associates are 
encouraged to inform Management at the appropriate level when 
they are concerned about any matter pertaining to Wal-Mart.

Wal-Mart has adopted a Statement of Ethics to guide our associ-
ates in the continued observance of high ethical standards such as 
honesty, integrity and compliance with the law in the conduct of 
Wal-Mart’s business. Familiarity and compliance with the 
Statement of Ethics is required of all associates who are part of 
Management. The company also maintains a separate Code of 
Ethics for our senior financial officers. Wal-Mart also has in place 
a Related-Party Transaction Policy. This policy applies to all of 
Wal-Mart’s Officers and Directors and requires material related-
party transactions to be reviewed by the Audit Committee. The 
Officers and Directors are required to report material related-
party transactions to Wal-Mart. We maintain an ethics office 
which oversees and administers an ethics hotline. The ethics 
hotline provides a channel for associates to make confidential 
and anonymous complaints regarding potential violations of our 
statements of ethics, including violations related to financial or 
accounting matters.

H. Lee Scott
President and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas M. Schoewe
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Management’s Report to Our Shareholders
W A L - M A R T
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  Discount   SAM’S  Neighborhood  
State Stores Supercenters CLUBS Markets

Alabama 18 71 11 2
Alaska 7 0 3 0
Arizona 18 33 11 5
Arkansas 26 54 5 6
California 149 3 33 0
Colorado 15 40 15 0
Connecticut 28 4 3 0
Delaware 3 4 1 0
Florida 53 116 38 6
Georgia 23 88 21 0
Hawaii 7 0 2 0
Idaho 3 14 1 0
Illinois 78 45 28 0
Indiana 31 56 15 4
Iowa 20 33 7 0
Kansas 19 34 6 3
Kentucky 26 52 5 2
Louisiana 26 56 12 1
Maine 11 11 3 0
Maryland 33 6 13 0
Massachusetts 42 2 3 0
Michigan 41 30 24 0
Minnesota 33 16 13 0
Mississippi 14 51 6 1
Missouri 46 70 14 0
Montana 4 7 1 0
Nebraska 8 16 3 0
Nevada 9 12 5 4
New Hampshire 19 7 4 0
New Jersey 38 0 9 0
New Mexico 3 24 5 0
New York 53 27 18 0
North Carolina 41 65 19 0
North Dakota 8 0 2 0
Ohio 69 45 27 0
Oklahoma 33 49 8 14
Oregon 20 7 0 0
Pennsylvania 49 60 21 0
Rhode Island 7 1 1 0
South Carolina 16 45 9 0
South Dakota 5 5 2 0
Tennessee 21 75 15 4
Texas 80 219 69 28
Utah 4 24 7 5
Vermont 4 0 0 0
Virginia 22 56 13 0
Washington 24 13 3 0
West Virginia 6 23 4 0
Wisconsin 38 37 11 0
Wyoming 2 7 2 0

U.S. Totals 1,353 1,713 551 85

Fiscal 2005 End-of-Year Store Count
W A L - M A R T

International/Worldwide

  Discount   SAM’S  Neighborhood  
Country Stores Supercenters CLUBS Markets

Argentina 0 11 0 0
Brazil 118* 17 12   2*
Canada 256 0 6 0
China 0 38 3 2
Germany 0 91 0 0
South Korea 0 16 0 0
Mexico  529† 89 61 0
Puerto Rico 9 4 9     32**
United Kingdom  263§ 19 0 0

International  
 Totals 1,175 285 91 36

Grand Totals 2,528 1,998 642 121

 *  Brazil includes 2 Todo Dias, 118 Bompreço.

 †   Mexico includes 162 Bodegas, 50 Suburbias, 48 Superamas, 269 Vips  
and does not include Vips franchises.

 **  Puerto Rico includes 32 Amigos.

 §   United Kingdom includes 256 ASDA Stores, 6 George Stores 
and 1 ASDA Living.
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Eduardo Castro-Wright
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating 
Officer, Wal-Mart Stores Division

M. Susan Chambers
Executive Vice President, Risk Management, 
Insurance and Benefits Administration

Robert F. Connolly
Executive Vice President, Marketing  
and Consumer Communications,  
Wal-Mart Stores Division 

Douglas J. Degn
Executive Vice President, Food, Consumables 
and Hardlines Merchandising, Wal-Mart 
Stores Division 

David J. Dible
Executive Vice President, Specialty Group, 
Wal-Mart Stores Division 

Linda M. Dillman
Executive Vice President and  
Chief Information Officer 

Michael T. Duke
Executive Vice President, President  
and Chief Executive Officer, Wal-Mart  
Stores Division 

Joseph J. Fitzsimmons 
Senior Vice President, Finance and Treasurer  

Rollin L. Ford
Executive Vice President, Logistics and 
Supply Chain 

David D. Glass
Chairman of the Executive Committee  
of the Board of Directors

Craig R. Herkert
Executive Vice President, President and  
Chief Executive Officer, The Americas,  
Wal-Mart International 

Charles M. Holley, Jr.
Senior Vice President and Controller

Thomas D. Hyde
Executive Vice President and  
Corporate Secretary 

Lawrence V. Jackson
Executive Vice President, People Division 

C. Douglas McMillon
Executive Vice President, Merchandising  
and Replenishment, SAM’S CLUB 

John B. Menzer
Executive Vice President, President and  
Chief Executive Officer,  
Wal-Mart International

Thomas M. Schoewe
Executive Vice President and  
Chief Financial Officer 

H. Lee Scott, Jr.
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Gregory E. Spragg
Executive Vice President, Operations,  
SAM’S CLUB 

B. Kevin Turner
Executive Vice President, President and  
Chief Executive Officer, SAM’S CLUB 

S. Robson Walton
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Claire A. Watts
Executive Vice President,  
Product Development, Apparel and  
Home Merchandising,  
Wal-Mart Stores Division

Senior Officers
W A L - M A R T
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James W. Breyer
Mr. Breyer is the Managing Partner of  
Accel Partners, a venture capital firm. 

M. Michele Burns 
Ms. Burns is the Chief Financial Officer  
of the Mirant Corporation. 

Douglas N. Daft
Mr. Daft is the retired Chief Executive Officer 
and Chairman of the Board of Directors of 
The Coca-Cola Company. 

David D. Glass 
David D. Glass is Chairman of the Executive 
Committee of the Board of Directors of  
Wal-Mart. 

Roland A. Hernandez
Mr. Hernandez is the retired Chief Executive 
Officer and Chairman of the Board of 
Directors of Telemundo Group, Inc., a 
Spanish-language television station company.

John D. Opie
Mr. Opie is the retired Vice Chairman of the 
Board of Directors and Executive Officer of 
the General Electric Co., a diversified tech-
nology, services, and products company.

J. Paul Reason 
Mr. Reason is the President and Chief 
Operating Officer of Metro Machine 
Corporation, an employee-owned  
ship repair company.

H. Lee Scott, Jr. 
H. Lee Scott, Jr. is the President and  
Chief Executive Officer of Wal-Mart. 

Jack C. Shewmaker 
Mr. Shewmaker is the President of  
J-COM, Inc., a consulting company, a retired 
Wal-Mart executive and a rancher. 

Jose H. Villarreal 
Mr. Villarreal is a partner in the law firm  
Akin, Gump, Strauss, Hauer & Feld, L.L.P. 

John T. Walton 
Mr. Walton is the Chairman of True North 
Partners, L.L.C., which holds investments in 
technology companies. 

S. Robson Walton 
S. Robson Walton is Chairman of the  
Board of Wal-Mart. 

Christopher J. Williams 
Mr. Williams is the Chairman of the Board 
and Chief Executive Officer of The Williams 
Capital Group, L.P., an investment bank.

Board of Directors
W A L - M A R T
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Market Price of Common Stock
Fiscal year ended January 31, 

 2004 2005
 High Low High Low

1st Quarter $56.58 $46.74 $61.05 $54.69
2nd Quarter $57.32 $52.00 $57.68 $51.76
3rd Quarter $60.08 $55.27 $54.97 $51.33
4th Quarter $59.04 $50.74 $57.70 $52.02

Fiscal year ended January 31,

 2006
 High Low

1st Quarter* $53.51 $50.65
*Through March 30, 2005

Certifications 
The company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer 
have filed their certifications as required by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) regarding the quality of the  
company’s public disclosure for each of the periods ended during  
the company’s fiscal year ended January 31, 2005  and the effective-
ness of internal control over financial reporting as of January 31, 2005.  
Further, the company’s Chief Executive Officer has certified to  
the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) that he is not aware of  
any violation by the company of the NYSE corporate governance 
listing standards, as required by Section 303A.12(a) of the NYSE 
listing standards.

Shareholders
As of March 30, 2005, there were 328,620 holders of record  
of  Wal-Mart’s Common Stock.

Dividends Paid Per Share  
Fiscal year ended January 31, 2004
April 7, 2003 $0.090
July 7, 2003 $0.090
October 14, 2003 $0.090
January 5, 2004 $0.090

Dividends Paid Per Share
 Fiscal year ended January 31, 2005
April 5, 2004 $0.130
June 7, 2004 $0.130
September 7, 2004 $0.130
January 3, 2005 $0.130

Dividends Payable Per Share
Fiscal year ended January 31, 2006
April 4, 2005 $0.150
June 6, 2005 $0.150
September 6, 2005 $0.150
January 3, 2006 $0.150

Stock Information
W A L - M A R T
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EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.
P.O. Box 43069
Providence, Rhode Island 02940-3069
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Internet: http://www.equiserve.com
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Listings – Stock Symbol: WMT
New York Stock Exchange
Pacific Stock Exchange

Annual Meeting:
Our Annual Meeting of Shareholders will be held on Friday, June 3, 
2005, at 8:45 a.m. in Bud Walton Arena on the University of Arkansas 
campus, Fayetteville, Arkansas. Pre-meeting activities start at 7:00 a.m.

Communication with Shareholders:
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. periodically communicates with its Shareholders 
and other members of the investment community about our opera-
tions. For further information regarding our policy on Shareholders and 
Investor Communications refer to our website www.walmartstores.com.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm:
Ernst & Young LLP
5414 Pinnacle Point Dr.
Suite 102
Rogers, AR 72758

Corporate Address:
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.
702 S.W. 8th Street
Bentonville, Arkansas 72716
Telephone: (479) 273-4000
Retail Internet Sites:  
 http://www.walmart.com 
 http://www.samsclub.com
Corporate Internet Sites:  
 http://www.walmartstores.com
 http://www.walmartfacts.com

The following reports are available without charge upon request by writing  
the company c/o Investor Relations or by calling (479) 273-8446. These 
reports are also available via the corporate website.
 Annual Report on Form 10-K
 Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q
 Current Sales and Earnings Releases
 Copy of Proxy Statement
 Supplier Standards Report
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Trustees
3.375%, 4.00%, 4.125%, 4.15%, 
4.375%, 4.55%, 5.006%, 5.45%, 
5.875%, 6.75%, 6.875%,
7.25%, 7.55%, 8.0%, 
Notes, MarksSM, Wal-Mart Canada
Venture Corp – 5.58%, 
EuroNotes© 2.792%
J.P. Morgan
Institutional Trust Services
2001 Bryan Street – 9th Floor
Dallas, Texas 75201

Global Notes – (GBP)
4.75%, 5.25%, 5.75%
J.P. Morgan
Institutional Trust Services
Trinity Tower
9 Thomas More Street
London E1W 1YT

Pass Through Certificates
1992-A-1-7.49%
1992-A-2-8.07%
Wells Fargo Bank
229 South Main Street – 12th Floor
Salt Lake City, Utah 84111

Pass Through Certificates
1994-A-1-8.57%
1994-A-2-8.85%
J.P. Morgan
Institutional Trust Services
2001 Bryan Street – 9th Floor
Dallas, Texas 75201

Pass Through Certificates
(Wal-Mart Retail Trust IV, V)
1994-B-1-8.45%
1994-B-2-8.62%
1994-B-3-8.80%
J.P. Morgan
Institutional Trust Services
2001 Bryan Street – 9th Floor
Dallas, Texas 75201

Sale/Leaseback Transaction
(Wal-Mart Retail Trust I, II, III)
US Bank, N.A.
Corporate Trust Services
P.O. Box 960778
Boston, Massachusetts
02102-0778

Sale/Leaseback Transaction
Series B – 8.75%
Series C – 8.875%
J.P. Morgan
Institutional Trust Services
2001 Bryan Street – 9th Floor
Dallas, Texas 75201

Sale/Leaseback Transaction
WMS I Series C – 8.72%
J.P. Morgan
Institutional Trust Services
2001 Bryan Street – 9th Floor
Dallas, Texas 75201



The Road Ahead Next year we’ll make over four million deliveries 

of freight to our Stores and Clubs; create over 120,000 more jobs worldwide; 

contribute to numerous charitable causes; help families save hundreds of dollars; 

add approximately 55 million more square feet of retail space; promote more 

associates and still realize that, as Mr. Sam said, “We’ve just begun.” 


